
CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS, FLORIDA 

Mayor Zavier M. Garcia 
Vice Mayor Billy Bain        Councilman Bob Best 
Councilwoman Roslyn Buckner  Councilman Jaime Petralanda 

Decorum: “Any person making impertinent or slanderous remarks or who becomes boisterous while addressing the City Council, shall be barred 
from further audience before the City Council by the Mayor, unless permission to continue or again address the City Council is granted by the 
majority vote of the City Council members present.  In accordance with the foregoing, the City Council has determined that racial or ethnic slurs, 
personal attacks and comments unrelated to City matters or issues constitute prohibited comments from the podium.” 

CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
Monday, December 14, 2015 – 7:00 p.m. 

City Hall, Council Chambers, 201 Westward Drive 

1. Call to Order/Roll Call

2. Invocation: Councilman Best

Salute to the Flag: Students from Miami Springs Middle School will lead the audience in
the Pledge of Allegiance and Salute to the Flag 

3. Awards & Presentations:

A) Recognizing the Miami Springs Little League Lightning 12U Travel Softball Team for
winning USSSA Weston Fall Classic 

B) Yard of the Month Award for December 2015 – 140 Apache Street – Maria Puyada

C) Swearing in Ceremony for newly hired Miami Springs Police Officers Edwin J.
Dominguez and Adonys Llorens 

D) Presentation by Carlos Migoya on Jackson West Project

4. Open Forum: Persons wishing to speak on items of general city business, please sign the
register located on the speaker's stand before the meeting begins. 

5. Approval of Council Minutes:

A) November 9, 2015 – Regular Meeting

6. Reports from Boards & Commissions: None.

7. Public Hearings:

A) Ordinance – Second Reading – An Ordinance Of The City Council Of The City Of
Miami Springs Amending Code Of Ordinance Section 150-010, Roof Materials, Requirements 
And Re-Roofs; By Including A New Provision Permitting Flat Roofs With Continuous Parapets; 
Repealing All Ordinances Or Parts Of Ordinances In Conflict; Effective Date 

REVISED



8. Consent Agenda: (Funded and/or Budgeted)

A) Approval of City Attorney’s Invoice for November 2015 in the Amount of $11,556.00

B) Recommendation by Building & Code Compliance that Council authorize the
issuance and/or execution of a contract to Advance Data Solutions, utilizing State of Florida 
contract #973-561-010-1 (attached), in an amount not to exceed $20,000.00 for the scanning of 
all building street files, which includes permits and plans in the Building Department, as funds 
were budgeted in the FY 15/16 Budget pursuant to Section 31.11 (E)(5) of the City Code 

C) Recommendation by Finance that Council approve an expenditure to Jumpin’ Jack
Productions in the amount of $1,500.00, for the December 2015 Classic Car Show at the Circle 
as funds were approved in the FY 15/16 Budget  

D) Recommendation by Finance that Council approve an expenditure to the River
Cities Festival in the amount of $7,500.00, for the 2016 River Cities Festival as funds were 
approved in the FY 15/16 Budget 

9. Old Business:

A) Appointments to Advisory Boards by the Mayor and Council Members

B) Discussion of status of Suco Election Litigation

C) Initiation of Strategic Plan Review

10. New Business:

A) Curtiss Mansion LAP Agreement - Approval of Resolution authorizing execution of
the LAP agreement for the Curtiss Mansion Trailhead Project (parking lot/driveway) 

B) Resolution – A Resolution Of The City Council Of The City Of Miami Springs
Providing For The Fifth Budget Amendment To The FY 2014-2015 Budget; By Increasing The 
General Fund Budget And The Special Revenue And Capital Projects Budget By Recording 
Various Expenses And Payments To Be Made By The City; Providing Intent; Specifying 
Compliance With Budgetary Processes And Procedures; Effective Date  

C) Resolution – A Resolution Of The City Council Of The City Of Miami Springs
Amending The Current Schedule Of Charges For Building, Plumbing, Electrical, Mechanical And 
Other Related Permit Charges Or Fees; Effective Date 

D) Discussion and recommendation regarding Prince Field Playground alternatives

E) Request by Kathie and Martin Marquez for scheduling of a date for their Board of
Appeals hearing 

F) Selection of Artist via Arts in Public Places process for our Aquatic Facility



H) Recommendation by Finance that Council approve exercising our second option
year of the contract with Alberni, Caballero & Fierman, LLP, in the amount of $34,000.00, for 
external auditing services as funds were budgeted in the FY15/16 Budget pursuant to Section 
§ 31.11 (E)(6)(g) of the City Code and pursuant to the City’s existing contract awarded under the
City’s RFP#02-12/13 

I) Recommendation by Police that Council approve the Mutual Aid Agreement to
participate in the South Florida Money Laundering Strike Force 

J) Request for Council to provide direction for Code Compliance enforcement of
current applicable codes regarding swale/tree decorations 

11. Other Business:

A) FY 2014-2015 Fourth Quarter Budget Status Update (Unaudited)

B) Consideration of Cancelling/Rescheduling the Regular Council meeting of Monday,

December 28th 

12. Reports & Recommendations:

A) City Attorney

B) City Manager

C) City Council

13. Adjourn

Please visit www.miamisprings-fl.gov for current meeting schedule or follow us on             Twitter @MIAMISPRINGSFL 
******************************************************************************************************* 
Live streaming video of this meeting is available at http://www.miamisprings-fl.gov/webcast. 
******************************************************************************************************* 

Anyone wishing to obtain a copy of an agenda item may contact the City Clerk at (305) 805-5006, download the complete agenda packet from 
www.miamisprings-fl.gov or view the materials at City Hall during regular business hours. 

******************************************************************************************************* 
Pursuant to Florida Statute 286.0114, the City Council provides the public with a reasonable opportunity to be heard on all matters. 

******************************************************************************************************* 
If any person decides to appeal any decision of this Board with respect to any matter considered, s/he will need a record of the proceedings and for such 

purpose may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the 
appeal is made (F. S. 286.0105), all of which the City does not provide. 

******************************************************************************************************* 
In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, persons needing a special accommodation to participate in this proceeding should contact the 

City Clerk, 201 Westward Drive, Miami Springs, Florida 33166.  Telephone: (305) 805-5006, no later than seven (7) days prior to the proceeding. 
******************************************************************************************************* 

Pursuant to Sec. 2-11.1 (S) of the Miami-Dade County Code and Miami Springs Code of Ordinances Chapter 33 - §33-20, all persons, firms or 
corporations employed or retained by a principal who seeks to encourage the passage, defeat, or modifications of (1) ordinance, resolution, action or 

decision of the City Council; (2) any action, decision, recommendation of any City Board or Committee; or (3) any action, decision or recommendation of 
City personnel during the time period of the entire decision-making process on such action, decision or recommendation which will be heard or reviewed 
by the City Council, or a City Board or Committee shall register with the City before engaging in any lobbying activities on forms prepared for this purpose 

and shall state under oath his or her name, business address, the name and business address of each person or entity which has employed said 
registrant to lobby, and the specific issue on which he or she has been employed to lobby.  A copy of the lobbyist registration form is available from the 

Office of the City Clerk. 
*******************************************************************************************************

G) Recommendation by Finance that Council authorize the execution of an
agreement between the State of Florida, Department of Environmental Protection, Divison of 
Water Restoration Assistance, in the amount of $500,000.00 on a cost reimbursement basis 
with no math requirement, to conduct a study of the Melrose and Esplanade drainage canal 
bank erosion problems, design solutions and implement stabilization to remediate 
embankment collapse and resulting negative impact on flow, roads, trees and vegetation.

http://www.miamisprings-fl.gov/
http://www.miamisprings-fl.gov/webcast
http://www.miamisprings-fl.gov/




 
CERTIFICATE OF RECOGNITION 

 
Presented to 

 

Maria Puyada 
 

Of 
 

140 Apache Street 
 

for her home being designated as 
 

“YARD OF THE MONTH” 
DECEMBER, 2015 

 
Presented this 14th day of December, 2015. 

 
 

CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS, FLORIDA 

 
                              Zavier M. Garcia 
                                     Mayor 

ATTEST: 

                     
Erika Gonzalez-Santamaria, MMC 
                 City Clerk  



 
 1 

 
 
  
 City of Miami Springs, Florida 

City Council Meeting 
 

Regular Meeting Minutes 
Monday, November 9, 2015 7:00 p.m. 

 
Council Chambers at City Hall 

201 Westward Drive, Miami Springs, Florida 
 
1. Call to Order/Roll Call: The meeting was called to order by the Mayor at 7:05 p.m.  
 
Present were the following:  
 
Mayor Zavier M. Garcia 
Vice Mayor Bob Best 
Councilman Billy Bain 
Councilwoman Roslyn Buckner 
Councilman Jaime A. Petralanda 
 
City Manager Ronald K. Gorland 
Assistant City Manager/Finance Director William Alonso 
City Attorney Jan K. Seiden 
Professional Services Supervisor Tammy Romero 
Recreation Director Omar Luna 
City Clerk Erika Gonzalez-Santamaria 
 
2. Invocation: Offered by Councilman Petralanda 
 

Salute to the Flag: Students from ISAAC Academy lead the audience in the Pledge 
of Allegiance and Salute to the Flag 

 
3. Awards & Presentations:  
 
 A)  Aquatic Facility Construction Issues Discussion 
 
Jorge Ferrer of B&A Architects addressed all of the Council’s questions regarding the 
aquatic facility construction. Specifically, in regards to the permits that have been issued by 
Miami-Dade County and those that are still pending. 
  
4. Open Forum:  
 
The following members of the public addressed the City Council:  Debra Ferrero, 219 
Miami Springs Avenue. 

 
5. Approval of Council Minutes: 

 
A) October 26, 2015 – Regular Meeting 

 
Councilman Best moved to approve the minutes.  Councilman Petralanda seconded 
the motion, which carried 5-0 on roll call vote.  The vote was as follows: Vice Mayor 



 
 2 

Bain, Councilman Best, Councilwoman Buckner, Councilman Petralanda and Mayor 
Garcia voting Yes. 

 
6. Reports from Boards & Commissions:  

 
A) Board of Adjustment – Approval of Actions Taken at their Meeting of 

November 2, 2015 Subject to the 10-day Appeal Period 
 
Vice Mayor Bain moved to approved the actions of the Board of Adjustment.  
Councilwoman Buckner seconded the motion, which carried 5-0 on roll call vote.  
The vote was as follows: Vice Mayor Bain, Councilman Best, Councilwoman 
Buckner, Councilman Petralanda and Mayor Garcia voting Yes. 

 
7. Public Hearings: None at this time. 
 
8. Consent Agenda: (Funded and/or Budgeted) 
  
 A) Approval of City Attorney’s Invoice for October 2015 in the Amount of 
$13,304.25 
 
 B) Recommendation by the Police Department that Council approve an 
expenditure of $14,000.00 to Loxia Technologies, the lowest responsible quote after 
obtaining three written quotes (attached), for the purchase, installation and training of a 
VersaDial Audio Log for 911 operation, as these funds were approved in the FY 15/16 
Budget pursuant to Section §31.11(C)(2) of the City Code 
 
 C) Recommendation by the Police Department that Council approve an 
expenditure of $18,000.00 to Loxia Technologies, the lowest responsible quote after 
obtaining three written quotes (attached), for the purchase and installation of a new 
Panasonic Hybrid telephone system, as these funds were approved in the FY 15/16 
Budget pursuant to Section §31.11(C)(2) of the City Code 
 
The City Manager read all items by title for the record. 
 
Councilman Best moved to approve the Consent Agenda.  Councilman Petralanda 
seconded the motion, which carried 5-0 on roll call vote.  The vote was as follows: 
Vice Mayor Bain, Councilman Best, Councilwoman Buckner, Councilman Petralanda 
and Mayor Garcia voting Yes. 
 
9. Old Business:  
 

A) Appointments to Advisory Boards by the Mayor and Council Members 
 
There were no appointments made at this time. 

 
B) Re-appointments to the following active Advisory Boards; Board of 

Adjustment/Zoning and Planning Board, Code Enforcement Board, Education Advisory 
Board, Historic Preservation Board, Board of Parks & Parkways, and Recreation 
Commission 

 



 
 3 

Councilman Best moved to re-appoint all pending board members to their respective 
boards.  Councilman Petralanda seconded the motion, which carried 5-0 on roll call 
vote.  The vote was as follows: Vice Mayor Bain, Councilman Best, Councilwoman 
Buckner, Councilman Petralanda and Mayor Garcia voting Yes. 

 
 C) Recommendation 1: Recommendation by Recreation that Council award City 
RFP #08-14/15 for Stafford Park Athletic Field Maintenance and RFP #09-14/15 for Peavy 
Dove and Prince Field Athletic Field Maintenance to Ballpark Maintenance, Inc., the lowest 
responsible bidder and authorize the execution of a contract (attached), in the amount of 
$159,293.17, for the maintenance of the athletic fields at Stafford Park, Peavy Dove and 
Prince Field as funds were budgeted in the FY15/16 Budget pursuant to Section §31.11 
(E)(1) of the City Code  
 
Vice Mayor Bain moved to approve Recommendation 1 and 2.  Councilman Bain 
seconded the motion, which carried 5-0 on roll call vote.  The vote was as follows: 
Vice Mayor Bain, Councilman Best, Councilwoman Buckner, Councilman Petralanda 
and Mayor Garcia voting Yes. 
 
  Recommendation 2: The Recreation Department requests an additional 
$19,600.30 to FY15/16 Budget account #001-5705-572.34-00 to cover the cost of our new 
fields maintenance contract. These funds would have to be budgeted from reserves 
 
Vice Mayor Bain moved to approve Recommendation 1 and 2.  Councilman Bain 
seconded the motion, which carried 5-0 on roll call vote.  The vote was as follows: 
Vice Mayor Bain, Councilman Best, Councilwoman Buckner, Councilman Petralanda 
and Mayor Garcia voting Yes. 
 
 D) Recommendation by Recreation that Council reject the bid received in 
response to RFP #10-14/15 for field maintenance services for mowing, litter control, etc. 
After further discussion, the maintenance of these areas will be completed in-house by our 
Public Works Department 
 
Vice Mayor Bain moved to approve the Recommendation.  Councilwoman Buckner 
seconded the motion, which carried 5-0 on roll call vote.  The vote was as follows: 
Vice Mayor Bain, Councilman Best, Councilwoman Buckner, Councilman Petralanda 
and Mayor Garcia voting Yes. 

 
10. New Business:  
  
 A) Recommendation by Recreation that Council authorize the issuance and/or 
execution of a purchase order to Hector Turf, utilizing a cooperative purchase with National 
IPA under contract #120535 in an amount of $15,530.00, for the purchase of a new Toro 
Sand Pro Model 3040 as funds were budgeted in the FY 15/16 Budget pursuant to Section 
31.11 (E)(5) of the City Code 
 
Vice Mayor Bain moved to approve the recommendation.  Councilman Best 
seconded the motion, which carried 5-0 on roll call vote.   The vote was as follows: 
Vice Mayor Bain, Councilman Best, Councilwoman Buckner, Councilman Petralanda 
and Mayor Garcia voting Yes. 
 
 



 
 4 

 
 B) Resolution – A  Resolution  Of  The  City  Council  Of  The  City  Of  Miami 
Springs, Florida, Determining The Necessity And Appropriateness Of The Acquisition Of 
Equipment Pursuant To A Master Lease With Suntrust Equipment Finance And Leasing 
Corporation;    Authorizing The Execution And Delivery Of Equipment Schedule No. 06 To 
Master Lease Agreement No. 04298; Authorizing The City Manager And Other Authorized 
City Officers To Execute The Lease Documentation, Evidence The Validity Of The Lease 
Documents, And Affix The City Seal Where Required; Directing The Execution Of Any 
Additional Lease Documentation By The Proper Officials And Officers Of The City In Order 
To Effectuate The Subject Transaction; Declaration Of Transaction Compliance With 
Internal Revenue Service Regulations; Effective Date 
 
Vice Mayor Bain moved to approve the recommendation.  Councilman Best 
seconded the motion, which carried 5-0 on roll call vote.   The vote was as follows: 
Vice Mayor Bain, Councilman Best, Councilwoman Buckner, Councilman Petralanda 
and Mayor Garcia voting Yes. 
 
 C) Ordinance – First Reading – An Ordinance Of The City Council Of The City 
Of Miami Springs Amending Code Of Ordinance Section 150-010, Roof Materials, 
Requirements And Re-Roofs; By Including A New Provision Permitting Flat Roofs With 
Continuous Parapets; Repealing All Ordinances Or Parts Of Ordinances In Conflict; 
Effective Date 
 
Valerie Laury McCarty, 424 Hunting Lodge Drive, addressed the City Council. 
 
Vice Mayor Bain moved to approve the recommendation.  Councilwoman Buckner 
seconded the motion, which carried 5-0 on roll call vote.   The vote was as follows: 
Vice Mayor Bain, Councilman Best, Councilwoman Buckner, Councilman Petralanda 
and Mayor Garcia voting Yes. 
 
 D) Review and request from the Historic Preservation Board seeking permission 
to resubmit for consideration the designation of the Geiger Memorial  
 
Councilman Best moved to approve the consideration of the designation of the 
Geiger Memorial.  Councilman Petralanda seconded the motion, which carried 5-0 on 
roll call vote.   The vote was as follows: Vice Mayor Bain, Councilman Best, 
Councilwoman Buckner, Councilman Petralanda and Mayor Garcia voting Yes. 
 
 E)  Request by the Historic Presentation Board for authorization to provide a 
newly drafted Designation Letter from the board 
 
City Attorney Seiden read the proposed intro letter for the record. 
 
Councilman Best moved to approve the introduction letter for the designation of a 
historical site.  Councilman Petralanda seconded the motion, which carried 5-0 on 
roll call vote.   The vote was as follows: Vice Mayor Bain, Councilman Best, 
Councilwoman Buckner, Councilman Petralanda and Mayor Garcia voting Yes. 
 
 F) Consideration of the Board of Parks and Parkways Recommendations for the 
Yard of the Month Awards for December 2015 and January 2016  



 
 5 

 
 
 
Vice Mayor Bain moved to approve the recommendation.  Councilman Petralanda 
seconded the motion, which carried 5-0 on roll call vote.   The vote was as follows: 
Vice Mayor Bain, Councilman Best, Councilwoman Buckner, Councilman Petralanda 
and Mayor Garcia voting Yes. 

 
10.  Other Business:  
 
 A) Consideration of Cancelling/Rescheduling the Regular Council meeting of 
Monday, November 23rd  

 
Councilman Best moved to cancel the November 23rd Council Meeting.  Councilman 
Petralanda seconded the motion, which carried 5-0 on roll call vote.   The vote was 
as follows: Vice Mayor Bain, Councilman Best, Councilwoman Buckner, Councilman 
Petralanda and Mayor Garcia voting Yes. 
  
 

11. Reports & Recommendations: 
 

A) City Attorney  
 
The City Attorney had nothing to report at this time. 
 

B) City Manager 
 
City Manager Gorland reminded the public and Council about the Veteran’s Day event on 
Wednesday.  He encouraged everyone to attend the event. 
  

C) City Council 
 
Councilwoman Buckner had no report at this time. 
 
Councilman Petralanda had no report at this time.   
 
Councilman Bain inquired about the American flag at the Geiger Memorial.  
 
Vice Mayor Best wished everyone a Happy Thanksgiving. 
 
Mayor Garcia wished the Esposito family condolences.  He thanked everyone who 
participated in the job fair that took place on Saturday at the Community Center; he also 
thanked Senator Garcia and Representative Avila for their efforts in putting on the job fair 
in the City.   
 
13. Adjourn 
 
There being no further business to be discussed the meeting was adjourned at 8:10 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 6 

 
 
 
 
 
Respectfully submitted: 
 
 
           
Erika Gonzalez-Santamaria, MMC 
City Clerk 
 
Adopted by the City Council on 
This 14th day of December, 2015. 
 
 
           
Zavier M. Garcia, Mayor 
 
PURSUANT TO FLORIDA STATUTES 286.0105, THE CITY HEREBY ADVISES THE PUBLIC THAT IF A PERSON DECIDES TO APPEAL ANY DECISION 
MADE BY THIS COUNCIL WITH RESPECT TO ANY MATTER CONSIDERED AT ITS MEETING OR HEARING, HE OR SHE WILL NEED A RECORD OF 
THE PROCEEDINGS, AND THAT FOR SUCH PURPOSE, THE AFFECTED PERSON MAY NEED TO ENSURE THAT VERBATIM RECORD OF THE 
PROCEECING IS MADE, WHICH RECORD INCLUDES THE TESTIMONY AND EVIDENCE UPON WHICH THE APPEAL IS TO BE BASED THIS NOTICE 
DOES NOT CONSTITUTE CONSENT BY THE CITY FOR THE INTRODUCTION OR ADMISSION OF OTHERWISE INADMISSIBLE OR IRRELEVANT 
EVIDENCE, NOR DOES IT AUTHORIZE CHALLENGES OR APPEALS NOT OTHERWISE ALLOWED BY LAW. 



ORDINANCE NO.      – 2015 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
MIAMI SPRINGS AMENDING CODE OF ORDINANCE SECTION 
150-010, ROOF MATERIALS, REQUIREMENTS AND RE-
ROOFS; BY INCLUDING A NEW PROVISION PERMITTING 
FLAT ROOFS WITH CONTINUOUS PARAPETS; REPEALING 
ALL ORDINANCES OR PARTS OF ORDINANCES IN 
CONFLICT; EFFECTIVE DATE 

 
 WHEREAS, the City has recently begun to receive requests to allow flat roofs on new 
structures to be built in the City; and,  
 
 WHEREAS, although the requests have mostly involved “modern style” construction, the 
flat roof authorization would also accommodate the “pueblo style” construction which is 
historically significant to the City; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, a material part of the discussions related to the authorization of new flat roof 
structures is the requirement to provide a continuous parapet to screen the roofing materials 
and any equipment to be located on the roof; and,  
 
 WHEREAS, the City administrative staff proposed the authorization of newly constructed 
flat roof structures to the City Council for its review and discussion; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that it is in the best interests of the City and 
its citizens to authorize the use of flat roofs with continuous parapets on the newly constructed 
structures in the City;  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS: 

 
Section 1: That Code of Ordinance Section, 150-010, Roof Materials, 

Requirements and Re-Roofs, is hereby amended as follows: 
 
Sec. 150-010. Roof Materials, requirements, and re-roofs.  
 
 A)……….. 
 
 B)……….. 
 
 C)……….. 
 
 D)……….. 
 
 E) Flat roofs are also permitted with a continuous 
masonry parapet with a minimum height of 18 inches, but in 
all cases taller than any rooftop equipment that may be 
placed thereon, and may be constructed of any material 



approved by the Florida Building Code, and shall have a 
minimum pitch as required by the Florida Building Code. 
 
 (F) ( E) Flat roofs without parapet screening 
shall also be permitted for home additions, attached garages 
or carports, or detached accessory structures shall only be 
permitted if the residential structure on the property, or a 
substantial adjoining or adjacent portion thereof, has an 
existing flat roof that will continue to be maintained.  If 
permitted, based upon the foregoing criteria, such flat roofs 
shall have a minimum pitch of one fourth inch rise per foot of 
run as required by the Florida Building Code. 
 
 (G) (F) Notwithstanding the foregoing, flat roofs will be 
permitted on "open patios", without screening, in rear yard 
areas, which constitute non-living space, so long as the 
property owner agrees that the patio area will never be 
enclosed so as to constitute "living space", and will execute 
a recordable and appropriate "Covenant Running-With-the-
Land" to provide notice to future purchasers of the property 
and further assurances of compliance to the City. In addition, 
the provisions of this section shall also be applicable to 
appropriate instances of reverse frontage. 
 
 (H) (G) Re-roofs.…………….. 
 
 (I) (H) Reserved. If a dispute arises as to whether all 
conditions have been met, any applicant can file an 
application in accordance with the procedures set forth in the 
Code of Ordinances for securing variances from the City to 
secure a final determination from the Board of Adjustment 
and City Council. 

   
Section 2: Repeal of Conflicting Provisions. That all Ordinances or parts of 

Ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed insofar as they are in conflict. 

Section 3:  Effective Date. That this Ordinance shall take effect immediately 
upon adoption. 

PASSED ON FIRST READING this 9th day of November, 2015, on a motion made by 
Vice Mayor Bain and seconded by Councilwoman Buckner. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED ON SECOND READING this    day of    
2015, on a motion made by     and seconded by    . 

  

 



Vice Mayor Bain       
Councilman Best       
Councilwoman Buckner      
Councilman Petralanda      
Mayor Garcia     

 
 

              

Zavier M. Garcia, Mayor 

ATTEST:           

 

 

           

Erika Gonzalez-Santamaria, MMC, City Clerk 

 

 

APPROVED AS TO LEGALITY AND FORM:    

 

 

      

Jan K. Seiden, City Attorney 

 

Words -stricken through- shall be deleted.  Underscored words constitute the amendment 
proposed.  Words remaining are now in effect and remain unchanged. 

 

 

 







141 Scarlet Blvd, Suite A 
Oldsmar, Florida 34677 
Phone: 813-855-3545 
Fax: 813-855-6575 
www.adsus.net 

Quotation for Services – State Contract – 08-13-15 
BILL TO: 
City of Miami Springs 
201 Westward Drive 
Miami Spring, Florida  33166 
Attn: Ulises Fernandez 
305.842.4321 / 
fernandezu@miamisprings-fl.gov 

Quantity Description Price Ext. Price 
175 Hours Per Batch: 

25 Oversized Bankers Boxes Consisting of up to 500 Size E Wide Format Plans or up to 
6,500 Small Format Documents or a combination of both. 
Services to include Record Preparation, Record Conversion to Group IV Standard TIFF 
File Format  & Metadata / Indexing of all records in accordance with naming conventions 
consistent with Laserfiche Electronic Document Management System. 

Incidental Expenses: 
DVD Media Discs - $15 Each (holds 25 banker boxes each) 
Pick-Up & Re-Delivery - $75 Each Way 
Box Destruction - $5.00 Each 
Incidental Programming - $75 per hour 

$28.00 Per 
Hour 

$4,900.00 

Priced at an Hourly rate of $28.00 Per Hour 
For 175 Hours = $ 5,200.00 to demonstrate 75% savings below State Contract Hourly rate 
pricing of $100 Per Hour 

STATE CONTRACT #: 973-561-010-1 
Total $4,900.00 

Advanced Data Solutions, Inc. State Contract #973-561-10-1 
Job Code #1420 - Data Modeler 

Base Conversion:  Conversion of approximately 162,000 Data Image Files per 25 Box Batch of Building Records.  Creation of Flat Data Files for Conversion to 
Group IV TIFF files for interface within the City's Laserfiche Records Management System – Conversion with Dept of State Guidelines of 300 dpi within Group IV 
TIFF Files Converted to Group IV TIFF Files. 
Data Conversion to include, Record Conversion, Indexing and Metadata Tagging and Extensive Quality Review  











    

 
 
 

 
CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS 
OFFICE OF THE CITY CLERK 
201 Westward Drive 
Miami Springs, FL 33166-5259 
Phone: 305.805.5006 
Fax: 305.805.5028 

 

 
TO:  Honorable Mayor Garcia and Members of the City Council 
 
FROM:  Erika Gonzalez-Santamaria, City Clerk  
 
DATE:  December 9, 2015 
 
SUBJECT: PENDING BOARD APPOINTMENTS 
 
************************************************************************************************************************************** 
The following appointments are pending: 

 NEW               ORIGINAL   LAST 
APPOINTMENT CURRENT  TERM  APPOINTMENT      APPOINTMENT 
COUNCILMEMBER  MEMBER     EXPIRES     DATE           DATE        
 
Board of Adjustment/Zoning and Planning Board   
Mayor Zavier Garcia  Juan Molina  04-30-2018 01-29-2015 11-09-2015 
Councilman Best   Bob Calvert  04-30-2018 01-28-2013 11-09-2015 
Bain Vice Mayor   Ernie Aloma  04-30-2016 04-13-2009 01-11-2011 
Councilwoman Buckner  Bill Tallman  04-30-2016 01-11-2010 05-14-2012 
Councilman Petralanda  Manuel Pérez-Vichot 04-30-2017 12-14-1998 11-09-2015 
Mayor Garcia   Alejandro J. Gonzalez 10-31-2017 12-03-2015 12-03-2015  
 
Architectural Review Board  
Mayor Zavier Garcia  Marc Scavuzzo*  10-31-2016  08-27-2012 11-09-2015 
Councilman Best   Valentine Soler  10-31-2016  01-14-2013 11-09-2015 
Vice Mayor Bain   Joe Valencia*  10-31-2016  02-27-2012 11-09-2015 
Councilwoman Buckner  Fredy Albiza*  10-31-2016  08-27-2012 11-09-2015 
Councilman Petralanda  Ana Paula Ibarra * 10-31-2016  10-10-2011 11-09-2015 
 
Code Enforcement Board 
Mayor Zavier Garcia  Jorge Filgueira*  11-30-2017  08-27-2012 11-09-2015 
Mayor Zavier Garcia  Walter Dworak  09-30-2016  11-14-2005 09-14-2010 
Councilman Best   Marlene B. Jiménez 09-30-2018  03-02-2005 11-09-2015 
Vice Mayor Bain   John Bankston  09-30-2017  09-23-2002 11-09-2015  
Councilman Bain   Rhonda Calvert  09-30-2017  09-25-2006 11-09-2015  
Councilwoman Buckner Jacqueline Martinez Regueira 09-30-2018  06-09-2003 11-09-2015   
Councilman Petralanda  Robert (Bob) Williams 09-30-2016  03-10-2008 10-25-2010 
 
Code Review Board  
Mayor Zavier Garcia  VACANT  04-30-2018   
Councilman Best   Maria (Nuñez) Garrett 04-30-2017 05-08-2009 11-09-2015 
Vice Mayor Bain   Arthur Freyre  04-30-2017 05-19-2009 05-09-2011 
Councilwoman Buckner  Dan Dorrego  04-30-2016 08-11-2003 05-24-2010 
Councilman Petralanda  Jana Armstrong  04-30-2016 06-11-2001 05-10-2010 
 
Disability Advisory Board  
Mayor Zavier Garcia  VACANT  12-31-2016  
Councilman Best   Catherine Stadnik 12-31-2016 12-14-1998 02-14-2011 
Vice Mayor Bain   Grace Bain  12-31-2016 01-13-2014 01-13-2014 
Councilwoman Buckner  Richard Barnes  12-31-2016 05-11-2009 01-24-2011 
Councilman Petralanda  Thomas W. Cannon 12-31-2016   
 
 



 
Ecology Board 
Mayor Zavier Garcia  Wendy Anderson Booher*04-30-2018 01-12-2009 11-09-2015  
Councilman Best   Trina Aguila  04-30-2018 10-28-2013 11-09-2015   
Vice Mayor Bain   Carl Malek*  04-30-2017 11-22-2010 05-09-2011 
Councilwoman Buckner  Marielys Acosta  04-30-2016 09-09-2013 09-09-2013 
Councilman Petralanda  Michael Kobiakov 04-30-2016 08-12-2013 08-12-2013 
 
Education Advisory Board  
Mayor Zavier Garcia  Alyssa C. Roelans 05-31-2017 02-17-2015 11-09-2015  
Councilman Best   Constantino Hernandez 05-31-2017 04-27-2015 11-09-2015 
Vice Mayor Bain   Dr. Mara Zapata* 05-31-2017 06-13-2011 11-09-2015  
Councilwoman Buckner  Ilia Molina   05-31-2017 02-05-2015 11-09-2015  
Councilman Petralanda   Steve Owens  05-31-2017 05-13-2013 11-09-2015 
 
Golf and Country Club Advisory Board 
Mayor Zavier Garcia  Michael Domínguez* 07-31-2017 04-12-2010 11-09-2015  
Councilman Best   Mark Safreed  07-30-2017 08-08-2005 11-09-2015 
Vice Mayor Bain   George Heider  07-31-2017 08-13-2001 11-09-2015 
Councilwoman Buckner  Ken Amendola*  07-31-2017 10-10-2011 11-09-2015 
Councilman Petralanda  Art Rabade  07-31-2017 03-11-2013 11-09-2015 
 
Historic Preservation Board 
Mayor Zavier Garcia  Sydney Garton  01-31-2016 11-08-1993 02-08-2010 
Councilman Best   Charles M. Hill  02-28-2018 03-08-2004 11-09-2015 
Vice Mayor Bain   Yvonne Shonberger 02-28-2017 06-13-2005 09-10-2012 
Councilwoman Buckner  Dr. James Watson 02-28-2018 06-09-2014 11-09-2015 
Councilman Petralanda  Jo Ellen Phillips  01-31-2016 2-14-2013 08-26-2013 
 
Board of Parks & Parkways 
Mayor Zavier Garcia  Eric Richey  04-30-2018 02-13-1989 11-09-2015 
Councilman Best   Tammy K. Johnston 04-30-2018 04-27-2006 11-09-2015 
Vice Mayor Bain   Lynne V. Brooks* 04-30-2018 08-08-2011 11-09-2015 
Councilwoman Buckner  Irene Priess  04-30-2017 08-13-2001 04-25-2011 
Councilman Petralanda  Lee Fisher  04-30-2017 03-23-2015 03-23-2015   
 
Recreation Commission 
Mayor Zavier Garcia  E. Jorge Santin  04-30-2016 04-14-2008 12-13-2010 
Councilman Best   Mark A. Johnston 04-30-2018 04-22-2013 04-22-2013 
Vice Mayor Bain   Dr. Stephanie Kondy 04-30-2017 06-13-2005 09-10-2012 
Councilwoman Buckner   Miguel Becerra  04-30-2017 09-09-2015 09-09-2015 
Councilman Petralanda  Alexander Anthony 04-30-2016 08-12-2013 08-12-2013 
 
 * Architectural Review Board 
  Ecology Board - Council confirmation required per §32.40  
  Education Advisory Board - Council confirmation required per §32.99 (A) 
  Board of Parks and Parkways – Council confirmation required per §32.30  
   
  “No Board/Commission member who shall have served three consecutive terms of office shall be eligible to serve 

an additional term of office for two years thereafter, unless the appointment for any additional term shall be 
confirmed by a majority of the City Council.” 

 















































1  

RESOLUTION NO. 2015 –  
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
MIAMI SPRINGS PROVIDING FOR THE FIFTH BUDGET 
AMENDMENT TO THE FY 2014-2015 BUDGET; BY 
INCREASING THE GENERAL FUND BUDGET AND THE 
SPECIAL REVENUE AND CAPITAL PROJECTS BUDGET 
BY RECORDING VARIOUS EXPENSES AND PAYMENTS 
TO BE MADE BY THE CITY; PROVIDING INTENT; 
SPECIFYING COMPLIANCE WITH BUDGETARY 
PROCESSES AND PROCEDURES; EFFECTIVE DATE 

 
WHEREAS, the City Charter prohibits any City department from incurring expenditures 

in excess of the department’s approved budget; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the Fund Balances of the City Council, Police, Public Works, Recreation 

and Culture, and Stormwater Operations of the General Fund need to be increased to 
provide for the payment of legal fees for the election litigation, an additional payment for 
worker’s compensation benefits to a retired police officer, the costs of resurfacing the tennis 
courts, the change order for the City Hall roof replacement project, and for the Oakwood 
Drive drainage project, respectively; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the Fund Balance of the Road and Transportation Fund of the Special 

Revenue and Capital Projects Budget needs to be increased to provide payment for the CITT 
Funded Grant Study of ADA ramps to be Performed by the City Engineers, Craven 
Thompson; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that the budget increases, recordations, 

and appropriations previously set forth herein are both proper and appropriate, in accordance 
with generally accepted municipal accounting principles, and in the best interests of the City 
and its citizens:; 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

MIAMI SPRINGS, FLORIDA: 
 
Section 1:  That the City Council of the City of Miami Springs hereby approves and 

authorizes the budgetary amendments and appropriations to the various revenues and 
expenditures of the budgets and funds set forth in Exhibit “A” attached hereto. 

 
Section 2:  That the City Council approvals and authorizations evidenced herein are 

intended to provide the City with the means to accomplish the purposes and projects identified 
in the recitals of this Resolution and the Exhibit attached hereto. 

 
Section 3:   That the City Council of the City of Miami Springs has authorized and 

approved the foregoing budgetary amendments, increases and appropriations in order to 
comply with generally accepted budgetary processes and procedures. 

 
 



  
 2 

Section 4:  That the provisions of this Resolution shall be effective immediately upon 
adoption by the City Council. 

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Miami Springs, Florida, 

this    day of   , 2015, on a motion by    and seconded 
by    . 

 
Vice Mayor Bain        
Councilman Best        
Councilwoman Buckner       
Councilman Petralanda       
Mayor Garcia      
  

 
        

             
Zavier M. Garcia, Mayor 

 
ATTEST:           
 
 
 
           
Erika Gonzalez-Santamaria, MMC, City Clerk 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO LEGALITY AND FORM:    
 
 
 
      
Jan K. Seiden, City Attorney 



EXHIBIT "A"

City of Miami Springs
FY 2014-15  Budget Amendment

All Operating Funds

Amended Amendment Amended
Fund/Classification Budget No. 5 Ref Budget

General Fund  
Revenues

Taxes $6,977,607 $6,977,607
Excise Taxes 2,556,000               2,556,000               
Licenses & Permits 974,700                  974,700                  
Intergovernmental Revenues 1,946,297               -                              1,946,297               
Charges for Services 2,292,361               2,292,361               
Fines & Forfeitures 462,682                  462,682                  
Miscellaneous 261,900                  261,900                  
Proceeds from debt 96,949                    -                             -           96,949                    
Fund Balance 84,780                    $121,982  206,762                  

Total General Fund $15,653,276 $121,982 $15,775,258
Expenditures

City Council 150,945 $6,750 6 157,695
City Manager 354,311   354,311
City Clerk 310,013   310,013
City Attorney 171,000  171,000
Human Resources 209,474  209,474
Finance-Administration 462,560 462,560
Finance-Professional Services 277,693 277,693
Information Technology 335,516 335,516
Planning 101,698 101,698
Police 6,046,787 79,500 5 6,126,287
Building, Zoning, and Code Enforcement 650,717   650,717
Public Works 1,692,371 8,400 3 1,700,771
Recreation & Culture 2,397,180 27,332 2 2,424,512
Golf Operations 1,746,086   1,746,086
Transfers to other funds 579,054   579,054
Budgeted Increase to reserves 167,871   167,871

Total General Fund 15,653,276 121,982 15,775,258

Sanitation Operations 2,346,945   2,346,945

Stormwater Operations 533,168 85,754 4 618,922

Total Enterprise Funds 2,857,313 $85,754 $2,965,867
Special Revenue & Capital Projects

Road & Transportation 601,073 $34,520 1 $635,593

Senior Center Operations 419,262   419,262

Capital Projects 1,185,867   1,185,867

Law Enforcement Trust 367,762   367,762
Total Special Revenue & Capital Projects Funds 2,221,715 $34,520 $2,608,484

      
G.O. Bonds - Series 1997 1,194,445 $1,194,445

Total Debt Service  1,194,445 $1,194,445
GRAND TOTAL ALL FUNDS $21,926,749 $242,256 $22,544,054

Legend:    
 
 
 1) Rceord $34,520 CITT funds for ADA Ramp grant study by Craven Thompson

 2) Record $27,332 for tennis court re-surfacing

 3) Record $8,400 change order for city hall roof

 4) Record the Oakwood Dr drainage project approved by Council for $85,754.
 

 5) Record payment of additional workmens compensation insurance to cover
claim from a retired police officer.
 
6) record $6,750 in legal fees from election lawsuit



CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS
201 Westward Drive

 Miami Springs, Florida 33166
  Building Processing Department

DATA CHARTS



TECHNOLOGY FEE:
City Technology Fee
Miami Springs 10%
Miami Lakes 10%
Miami Gardens 15%
Hialeah 10%

SCANNING FEE:
City Size Scanning Fee
Miami Springs Small Sheets 1.00$                    
Miami Springs Large Sheets 3.00$                    
Miami Lakes Small Sheet 1.54$                    
Miami Lakes Large Sheets 3.08$                    
Hialeah Small Sheets 1.00$                    
Hialeah Large Sheets 3.00$                    
Doral Any Size Sheet 3.00$                    

 $-
 $0.50
 $1.00
 $1.50
 $2.00
 $2.50
 $3.00
 $3.50

Small
Sheets

Large
Sheets

Small
Sheet

Large
Sheets

Small
Sheets

Large
Sheets

Any Size
Sheet

Miami
Springs

Miami
Springs

Miami
Lakes

Miami
Lakes

Hialeah Hialeah Doral

 $1.00  

 $3.00  

 $1.54  

 $3.08  

 $1.00  

 $3.00   $3.00  

Scanning Fee 

0%

5%

10%

15%

Miami SpringsMiami Lakes
Miami Gardens Hialeah

10% 10% 

15% 

10% 

Technology Fee 

Miami Springs

Miami Lakes

Miami Gardens

Hialeah



City Fee Per Trade
Miami Springs 50.00$                         
Miami Lakes 100.00$                       
North Miami 53.79$                         
Doral 86.00$                         

AFTER HOUR INSPECTION FEE:
City Type After Hour Fee
Miami Springs Residential 150.00$               
Miami Springs Commercial 250.00$               
Hialeah Residential 225.00$               
Hialeah Commercial 275.00$               
Miami Lakes Any Type 406.16$               
Doral Any Type 225.00$               

PLAN REVISION FEE:

 $-

 $20.00

 $40.00

 $60.00

 $80.00

 $100.00

Miami
Springs

Miami Lakes North Miami Doral

 $50.00  

 $100.00  

 $53.79  

 $86.00  

Plan Revision Fee Per Trade 

Miami Springs

Miami Lakes

North Miami

Doral

 $-
 $100.00
 $200.00
 $300.00
 $400.00

Re
sid

en
tia

l

Co
m

m
er

ci
al

Re
sid

en
tia

l

Co
m

m
er

ci
al

An
y 

Ty
pe

An
y 

Ty
pe

Miami
Springs

Miami
Springs

Hialeah Hialeah Miami
Lakes

Doral

 $150.00  
 $250.00   $225.00   $275.00  

 $406.16  

 $225.00  

AFTER HOUR INSPECTION FEE 



COURTESY INSPECTION FEE:
City Inspection Fee
Miami Springs 50.00$                         
North Miami 79.00$                         
Hialeah 75.00$                         

MASONRY WALL FEE:
City Per Linear Foot
Miami Springs 1.75$                            
Pinecrest 2.82$                            
Doral 1.80$                            
Hialeah 2.00$                            

 $-

 $20.00

 $40.00

 $60.00

 $80.00

Miami Springs
North Miami

Hialeah

 $50.00  

 $79.00  
 $75.00  

Courtesy Inspection Fee 

 $-
 $0.50
 $1.00
 $1.50
 $2.00
 $2.50
 $3.00

Miami Springs Pinecrest Doral Hialeah

 $1.75  

 $2.82  

 $1.80   $2.00  

Masonry Wall Fees Per Linear Foot 



 1 

 RESOLUTION NO. 2015 -  
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
MIAMI SPRINGS AMENDING THE CURRENT SCHEDULE 
OF CHARGES FOR BUILDING, PLUMBING, ELECTRICAL, 
MECHANICAL AND OTHER RELATED PERMIT CHARGES 
OR FEES; EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
WHEREAS, Ordinance 659-82 was passed on May 10, 1982, authorizing and 

directing the establishment and maintenance of a “Schedule of Charges” for Building, 
Plumbing, Electrical, Mechanical and other related permits issued by the City; and, 

 
WHEREAS, as currently codified in a Code of Ordinance Section 151.07, Ordinance 

No. 659-82 further authorized and directed the adoption of a current ”Schedule of Charges” 
from time to time by City Council Resolution; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the most current “Schedule of Charges” was established on July 2, 

2014, by the adoption of City Resolution No. 2014-3620; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Miami Springs is desirous of amending 

the City’s current “Schedule of Charges” as authorized by Code of Ordinance Section 
151.07: 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF MIAMI SPRINGS, FLORIDA: 
 
Section 1:   That the revised Schedule of Charges for Building, Plumbing, Electrical, 

Mechanical and other related permits and fees attached hereto as Exhibit “A” is hereby 
approved and adopted. 

 
Section 2:   That the provisions of this Resolution shall become effective upon 

adoption. 
 

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Miami Springs, Florida, 

this    day of   , 2015, on a motion by     and seconded 
by    . 

 
 
 
Vice Mayor Bain        
Councilman Best        
Councilwoman Buckner       
Councilman Petralanda       
Mayor Garcia       



 2 

 
 
 
 
              

Zavier M. Garcia, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:           
 
 
           
Erika Gonzalez-Santamaria, MMC, City Clerk 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO LEGALITY AND FORM:    
 
 
 
      
Jan K. Seiden, City Attorney 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

                                                        
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

                    CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS 
                     201 Westward Drive 

                 Miami Springs, Florida 33166 
         Building Processing Department 

              

 
 

PROPOSED 
FEE SCHEDULE 

 

 

 

 
 
 

EXHIBIT A 



 

1 
Revised 12/03/15 

Table of Contents 
BUILDING PERMITS FEES ............................................................................................... 3 

General Maintenance and Repairs ....................................................................................... 3 
Upfront Processing Fee ......................................................................................................... 3 
Structural Processing Fee ...................................................................................................... 3 
New Construction or Additions Fees .................................................................................... 3 

GENERAL FEES..........................................................................................................................4  
Patios..................................................................................................................................... 4 
Driveways .............................................................................................................................. 4 
Wood Decks .......................................................................................................................... 4 
Aluminum Roofs .................................................................................................................... 4 
Awnings ................................................................................................................................. 4 
Windows ............................................................................................................................... 4 
Doors ..................................................................................................................................... 4 
Shutters ................................................................................................................................. 4 
Roof and Roof repairs ........................................................................................................... 4 
Air Conditioning Screens ....................................................................................................... 4 
Masonry Fences .................................................................................................................... 4 
Chain Link Fences .................................................................................................................. 4 
Signs ...................................................................................................................................... 4 
Demolition ............................................................................................................................ 4 
Utility Sheds .......................................................................................................................... 4 

ALTERATIONS AND REPAIRS FEES .............................................................................................5 
MINIMUM PERMIT FEES ...........................................................................................................5 
MISCELLANEOUS FEES ..............................................................................................................5 

Re-inspections ....................................................................................................................... 5 
Double fees ........................................................................................................................... 5 
Lost Plans .............................................................................................................................. 5 
Revisions ............................................................................................................................... 5 
Extension ............................................................................................................................... 5 
Renewals ............................................................................................................................... 5 
CO/CTO ................................................................................................................................. 5 
Permit card Replacement ..................................................................................................... 5 
Change of contractor ............................................................................................................ 5 
Forty Year Certification ......................................................................................................... 6 
Courtesy Inspection .............................................................................................................. 6 
Change of use and occupational license inspection ............................................................. 6 
Construction competition bond ............................................................................................ 6 
Special Projects ..................................................................................................................... 6 
Conditional Re-Occupancy Agreement ................................................................................. 6 
Conditional Code Compliance Agreement ............................................................................ 6 
Unsafe structures board filing .............................................................................................. 6 
Technology fee ...................................................................................................................... 6 
Scanning fee .......................................................................................................................... 7 
After Hour Inspection Fee ..................................................................................................... 7 

REFUND ...................................................................................................................................7 
ELECTRICAL PERMIT FEES .............................................................................................. 7 

Minimum Fee ........................................................................................................................ 7 
Services ................................................................................................................................. 7 
Switchboards......................................................................................................................... 7 
Rough wiring outlets ............................................................................................................. 7 
Low voltage systems ............................................................................................................. 7 
Equipment outlets or permanent connections..................................................................... 7 



 

2 
Revised 12/03/15 

Air conditioners ..................................................................................................................... 8 
Generators ............................................................................................................................ 8 
Welding machine outlets ...................................................................................................... 8 
Special purpose outlets ......................................................................................................... 8 
Temporary work on circuses, carnivals, outdoor events ...................................................... 8 
Fixtures .................................................................................................................................. 8 
Plug mold and strip lighting .................................................................................................. 8 
Satellite Antenna grounding ................................................................................................. 9 
Demolitions, removal of electrical circuits, per floor ........................................................... 9 
Swimming pools, spas, and hot tubs .................................................................................... 9 

PLUMBING PERMITS FEES ............................................................................................. 9 
Residential/Commercial ........................................................................................................ 9 
Water treatment plants ........................................................................................................ 9 
Grease trap ........................................................................................................................... 9 
Interceptors .......................................................................................................................... 9 
Wells ..................................................................................................................................... 9 
Sewer connection ................................................................................................................. 9 
Water service ........................................................................................................................ 9 
Sewer capping ....................................................................................................................... 9 
Septic tank ............................................................................................................................ 9 
Soakage pit ............................................................................................................................ 9 
Catch basin ............................................................................................................................ 9 
Interceptor-grease-oil ........................................................................................................... 9 
Solar water heaters ............................................................................................................... 9 
Heat recovery systems .......................................................................................................... 9 
Pool Piping ............................................................................................................................ 9 
Drain field .............................................................................................................................. 9 
Pump and abandon septic tank ............................................................................................ 9 
Roof drains & area drains ..................................................................................................... 9 
Lawn sprinkler system .......................................................................................................... 9 
Backflow prevention ............................................................................................................. 9 
Fire sprinklers ........................................................................................................................ 10 

MECHANICAL PERMIT FEES ........................................................................................... 10 
Air conditioning and refrigeration ........................................................................................ 10 
Condensate drains ................................................................................................................ 10 
Heating Units ........................................................................................................................ 10 
All spray booths .................................................................................................................... 10 
Boilers and pressure vessels ................................................................................................. 10 
Internal combustion engines ................................................................................................ 11 
Pressure piping ..................................................................................................................... 11 
Cooling tower ........................................................................................................................ 11 
Ventilation and ventilation systems ..................................................................................... 11 
Fireplace ................................................................................................................................ 11 
Bath fans ............................................................................................................................... 11 
Vented kitchen hoods ........................................................................................................... 11 
Storage/Piping tanks for flammable liquids .......................................................................... 11 
Chemical hoods and fans ...................................................................................................... 11 
Exhaust fans/power vents .................................................................................................... 11 
Unfired pressure vessels ....................................................................................................... 11 
Yearly smoke evacuation test ............................................................................................... 11 

PORTABLE STORAGE UNITS FEES ................................................................................... 11 
PLANNING AND ZONING FEES ....................................................................................... 11, 12 
TREE RELATED FEES ...................................................................................................... 12 



 

3 
Revised 12/03/15 

 
 

CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS  
201 Westward Drive 

Miami Springs,  Flor ida 33166 
Building Process ing Department  

 
SCHEDULE OF CHARGES FOR BUILDING, PLUMBING, ELECTRICAL, MECHANICAL 

AND OTHER RELATED PERMITS AND FEES 
 
BUILDING PERMITS FEES: 
 
1. General maintenance and repairs.  Refer to City Code Section 151.04 (H). 
 
2. Upfront Processing Fee.  When the building permit is received, the applicant shall pay an 

"upfront" processing fee equal ($3.00) for each one hundred (100) square feet, or fractional 
part thereof, or ($3.00) for each ($1,000.00) of estimated valuation, or fractional part 
thereof.   This processing fee is not refundable but shall be credited towards the final 
building permit fee. 

 
3. Structural Processing Fee.  When a building permit application requires review by the 

structural plans processor, a non-refundable fee of ($100) shall be added to the upfront fee 
on residential permits and ($150) for Commercial permits. Subsequent reviews required 
shall be charged at the same rate per review. Special reviews or reviews that require extra 
time shall be charged at as per hour rate for the structural engineer 

• A fee of ($50) shall be charged for window, door, and shutter replacement permits.  
• No fees shall be charged for a single item submittal of a window, door or shutter 

permit.  
 

4. New Construction or Additions Fee.  The permit fee for general or new construction shall 
be as follows: 
A. New residences, and additions to residential property: 

• Per $1.00 of estimated cost or fractional part….($0.03) (estimated cost shall be 
established by the Building Official using the “R.S. Means Building Construction Cost 
Data” manual) 

• Minimum fee:  $125.00 
 

B. Office buildings, duplexes, hotels, apartments, condominiums, store buildings or any 
other commercial or multiple family zoned properties, tenant improvements, interior 
alterations, parking garages, warehouses with minimum office space, commercial 
swimming pools: 
• Per $1.00 of estimated cost or fractional part…. ($0.04) (estimated cost shall be 

established by the Building Official using the “R.S. Means Building Construction Cost 
Data” manual) 

• Minimum fee:  $125.0 
 

C. Valuation.  The method of determining minimum valuation on which permits are based 
as covered above shall be established by the Building Official in conjunction with the 
Dade County Office of Code Compliance. (Chapter 8, Section 8-12) 



 

4 
Revised 12/03/15 

 
 
5. General. The permit fee for general construction shall be as follows: 

A. Concrete patios, driveways, concrete steps, walkways, parking lots, tennis courts and 
landscaping (residential or business): 
• Minimum fee:  $125.00 
• ($0.18) per sq. ft. or fractional part thereof 

 
B. Wood decks, screen enclosures, and aluminum roofs: 

• Minimum fee: $150.00 
• ($0.75) per sq. ft. or fractional part thereof. 

 
C. Awnings, canopies, window, shutters, gates, wrought iron grills, doors and garage doors 

(residential or business): 
• Minimum fee:  $125.00 
• ($4.38) per each item or fractional part thereof. 

 
D. Roof and roof repairs, general repairs over $300.00 (residential or business): 

• Minimum fee:  $125.00 
• ($0.13) per sq. ft. or fractional part thereof. 

 
E. Air conditioning screens, aluminum fences, wood fences (residential or business): 

• Minimum fee:  $125.00 
• ($0.81) per LN. FT. or fractional part thereof. 

 
F. Wrought iron fences, and railings (residential or business): 

• Minimum fee:  $125.00 
• ($1.06) per LN. FT. or fractional part thereof. 

 
G. Masonry fences and retaining walls: 

• Minimum fee: $150.00 
• ($1.75) per LN. FT. or fractional part thereof. 

 
H. Chain link fences (residential or business): 

• Minimum fee:  $125.00 
• ($0.38) per LN. FT. or fractional part thereof. 

  
I. Signs:  

• Minimum fee:  $125.00 
• ($2.50) per sq. ft. or fractional part thereof. 
• Contractor Signs:  $25.00  
• Window signs-$50 (minimum fee not applicable) 

 
J. Housing and building moving: 

• Per building or structure:    $125.00 
• For each 100 sq. ft. or fractional part thereof: ($12.50)  

 
K. Demolition (residential or business): 

• Minimum fee:  $125.00 
• ($0.06) per sq. ft. or fractional part thereof. 

 
L. Utility sheds  



  

5 
Revised 12/03/15 

• Per building or structure:   $125.00 
6. Alterations and Repairs Fee: 

A. (Single family residential zones): 
• Minimum fee:  $125.00 
• Per $1000.00 of value or fractional part thereof: ($30.00) 

B. (Commercial or multiple family zones): 
• Minimum fee:  $125.00 
• Per $1000.00 of value or fractional part thereof: ($40.00) 

 
7. Minimum Permit Fee: 

A Minimum Permit shall be allowed in cases where the value of the job is below $500 and 
the Permit requires only one review and one inspection.  Such Permit shall have a fee of 
fifty dollars ($50.00).  Minimum Permits must have the prior approval of the Building 
Official, Director of Building and Code Compliance, or his/her designee. 

 
10. Miscellaneous Fees. The City shall charge and collect the following fees for re-inspection, 

double permits, lost plans, revised plans, and second re-inspection fees, to wit: 
A. Re-inspection fees.  Refer to Code Section 151.06(B)(1). 
B. Double fees. When work for which a permit is required is commenced prior to the 

obtaining of a permit, the permit applicant shall be required to pay ($100.00) plus a 
double permit fee. The payment of the required fee shall not relieve them from being 
subject to any of the penalties therein. The double fee requirements shall be applicable 
to all divisions of the Building Department as noted herein. 

C. Lost plan fee.  When plans for new buildings and additions are lost by the owner or the 
contractor, a recertification   will be required to review, stamp, and approve a new set 
of plans as a field copy. The fee shall be (30%) of the original building permit fee up to a 
maximum of ($500.00). The lost plan fee shall never be lower than ($100.00). 

D. Revisions to existing plans.  A fee for reviewing plans (after approval of initial plans) 
shall be ($50.00) per sheet and/or per trade, with a minimum fee of ($25.00). 

E. Extension of permit prior to expiration.  A fee of ($50.00) shall be paid by the permit 
holder who submits a written request for a permit extension to the Building Official. 

F. Renewal of expired permit. A minimum fee of ($125.00) shall be applied for those 
permits that only require a final inspection. When a permit has become null and void 
pursuant to the Florida Building Code, a credit of fifty percent (50%) of the permit fee 
shall be applied to any re-application (Renewal) fee for a permit covering the same 
project and involving the same plans, provided that the complete re-application is made 
within six (6) months of the expiration date of the original permit, and provided that no 
refund had been made as provided in this Section. 

G. Shop drawing review.  A fee of ($17.50) per sheet shall be charged for reviewing shop 
drawings. 

H. Certificate of occupancy and certificate of completion.  ($125.00) each. 
I. Temporary certificate of occupancy and temporary certificate of completion.  ($65.00) 

each. Failure to renew temporary certificate of occupancy or temporary certificate of 
completion ($125.00). 

J. Permit card replacement shall carry a fee of ($30.00). 
K. Change of contractor.  The fee for a change of contractor shall be (25%) percent of the 

original base permit fee when the job is up to fifty percent complete as determined by 
the City Building Official.  The fee for a change of contractor shall be (20%) percent of 



  

6 
Revised 12/03/15 

the original base permit fee when the job is between fifty one and seventy five percent 
complete as determined by the City Building Official.  The fee for a change of contractor 
shall be (10%) percent of the original base permit fee when the job is between seventy 
six and one hundred percent complete as determined by the City Building Official.  
Notwithstanding the foregoing fee, other miscellaneous fees set forth in this Schedule 
of Charges may also be applicable in the sole and exclusive discretion of the City 
Building Official. 

L. Forty year certification fee.  For every application for forty year certification under 
section 104.9, Florida Building Code, there shall be paid to the City, for the processing of 
each application, a fee of ($250.00). For every application for subsequent recertification 
at ten year intervals thereafter, there shall be paid to the City, for the processing of each 
application, a fee of ($125.00). 

M. Courtesy inspection fee.  When a homeowner requests that a courtesy inspection be 
performed by a code enforcement officer in order to establish if any City Code violations 
exist, and a written report is prepared, a fee of one hundred twenty five dollars 
($125.00) shall be paid to the City. A fee of ($50.00) shall be assessed for a verification 
inspection required to close-out and/or cancel an expired permit. 

N. Change of use and occupational license inspection.  Whenever a new occupational 
license or new occupancy is applied for, a fee of ($125.00) shall be paid to the City for 
inspection of the premises prior to the issuance of said license. This fee is non 
refundable and does not apply towards the licensing fee. 

O. A fee of ($25.00) shall be charged for the preparation and submission of any letters 
requested by any citizen or third party regarding any building information on any 
property in the city.  

P. A fee of fifty cents (.50) per $1,000 job cost, or fractional value of work to be done as 
has been mandated by Dade County Code Compliance Office under County ordinance 
91-74.  This code compliance fee shall be in addition to any other fees and costs that 
may be payable as a condition of obtaining a permit, and shall be non-refundable. 

Q. A fee of one cent (.01) per square foot shall be paid to the City for the purpose of Radon 
Surcharge as mandated by the State of Florida Department of Business Regulation and 
the Department of Health and Rehabilitation Services under Florida Administrative Code 
Section 468.631 and Section 10D-91.1314, respectively, in addition to any other fees 
and costs that may be payable as a condition of obtaining a permit, and shall be non-
refundable. 

R. Construction completion bond in the amount of $250.00 shall be assessed on every 
permit which is valued in excess of $2500.00.  This bond will be refunded upon the 
approval of the final inspection or upon the issuance of a certificate of completion or 
certificate of occupancy. 

S. Special Project Fees.  The Building Official or designee has the authority to invoice for 
reimbursement of actual costs on projects requiring services not provided for in the 
current fee schedule.  The invoice will be based on estimated time needed for the 
project times the current hourly rate of the Building Official or his designee. 

T. Conditional Re-Occupancy Agreement-$500 
U. Conditional Code Compliance Agreement-$500 
V. Unsafe Structures Board Filing $500 plus costs (as billed by the Unsafe Structures Board) 
W. Technology Fee: 

A technology fee of 10% of the total Building permit fee shall be assessed to each permit to  
enhance the city’s ability to provide state-of-the-art technology to its Building Department 



  

7 
Revised 12/03/15 

customers. 
 

X. Scanning Fee. A fee charged per page for cost recovery of digitizing permit drawings for 
electronic plan review: 
• Small sheets “11x17 or smaller” shall be charged at ($1.00 per page)  
• Large sheets “18x24 or larger” shall be charged at ($3.00 per page) 

Y. After Hours Inspection Fee. Inspections scheduled before/after working hours, 
weekends and/or holidays shall be paid in advance.  
• Residential: ($150.00 per inspection)  
• Commercial: ($250.00 per inspection) 
 

11. Refunds.  The refunding of any permit fees shall be as follows: 
A. There shall be no permit fees refunded for completed permitted work. 
B. The Building Director may recommend the refund of 80% of all refundable permit fees so 

long as no work has commenced within 90 days of permitting and no permits have been 
void.  However, the fee collected for the examination of plans and specifications shall not 
be refundable. 

C. If at any time a permit is canceled for any reason, at such time as a new permit is 
requested a complete processing of plans and permit fee shall be required to include 
reviews by all required trades and applicable boards. 

 
ELECTRICAL PERMIT FEES: 
 
1. Minimum fee .............................................................................................................. $125.00 

A. Temporary service for testing purposes, construction......................................... $62.50       
(Plus fees listed below for 101 amps & over)              
B. Service repair and/or meter change (adding 3rd phase) ..................................... $50.00          
C. Temporary for testing, for a period of 30 days..................................................... $50.00 
D. Renewal, for additional 30 days ........................................................................... $50.00 
E. Signs (each) ........................................................................................................... $50.00 

2. Services.  In addition to the foregoing the following fees shall be charged for each service 
and each feeder (feed rail): 
A. 100 amps and under ............................................................................................. $37.50 
B. 101 amps thru 200 amps ...................................................................................... $43.75 
C. 201 amps thru 400 amps ...................................................................................... $50.00 
D. 401 amps thru 600 amps ...................................................................................... $62.50 
E. 601 amps thru 800 amps ...................................................................................... $68.75 
F. For each 100 amps over 800 amps ....................................................................... $6.25 

1. Switchboards.  Fees are the same as the fees under “services” computed on amps, as set 
forth in (2.) above. 

2. Rough wiring outlets. (light, receptacle, switch, sign and also telephone and other low 
voltage outlets): 
A. 1-10 outlets ........................................................................................................... $25.00 
B. Each additional outlet ........................................................................................... $2.50 

3. Low voltage systems.  Items listed below but, not limited to: 
A. Fire alarm or intercom systems, each device ....................................................... $37.50 
(Security alarms do not require a permit)   
B. Fire alarm and/or fire pump test, per hour .......................................................... $62.50 



  

8 
Revised 12/03/15 

4. Equipment outlets or permanent connections: 
A. Air conditioners, window and through wall units ................................................ $12.50 
B. Compactor............................................................................................................. $12.50 
C. Deep freezer.......................................................................................................... $12.50 
D. Dishwasher ............................................................................................................ $12.50 
E. Dryer ..................................................................................................................... $12.50 
F. Fan ......................................................................................................................... $12.50 
G. Garbage disposal ................................................................................................... $12.50 
H. Heat recovery ........................................................................................................ $12.50 
I. Oven ...................................................................................................................... $12.50 
J. Range/range top ................................................................................................... $12.50 
K. Refrigerator (domestic) ......................................................................................... $12.50 
L. Refrigerator (commercial per HP, see motor schedule) ....................................... $12.50 
M. Space heater ......................................................................................................... $12.50 
N. Time clock ............................................................................................................. $12.50 
O. Washing machine .................................................................................................. $12.50 
P. Water heater-boiler (electrical) ............................................................................ $12.50 

5. Air conditioners, central, per ton .............................................................................. $8.75 
6. Clear violations inspection, new tenants .................................................................. $62.50 
7. Motors: 

A. Up to 5 HP ............................................................................................................. $12.50 
B. 5 HP - 10 HP .......................................................................................................... $37.50 
C. Over 10 HP (additional per HP) ............................................................................. $2.50 

8. Generators, transformers, commercial heating equipment and strip heaters: 
A. Up to 5 KW ............................................................................................................ $12.50 
B. Up to 10 KW .......................................................................................................... $20.00 
C. 10 KW - 25 KW, each ............................................................................................. $37.50 
D. Over 25 KW, each .................................................................................................. $62.50 
E. Transformers for X-rays ........................................................................................ $22.50 

9. Welding machine outlets: 
A. Up to 50 amps ....................................................................................................... $25.00 
B. Each additional 50 amps or fraction thereof ........................................................ $12.50 

10. Special purpose outlets, commercial: Popcorn, doughnut, drink machines; coin-
music machines; toasters; coffee urns; espresso machines; deep fryers; telephone 
booths; refrigerator display cases; etc., $25.00 each. 

11. Temporary work on circuses, carnivals, outdoor events... 
A. Minimum Fee ........................................................................................................ $187.50 

12. Fixtures: 
A. Lights: 

• 1 - 10 sockets .................................................................................................. $12.50 
• 1 - 10 fluorescent tubes .................................................................................. $12.50 

B. Each additional ...................................................................................................... $1.25 
C. Lighting fixture "heads", each ............................................................................... $8.75 
D. Flood lights or light standards, each ..................................................................... $12.50 
E. Parking lot lights, mercury vapor or quartz,  charge per light .............................. $12.50 

13. Plug mold and strip lighting: 
A. First 10 feet or fractional part thereof ................................................................. $31.25 
B. Each 5 feet or fractional part thereafter .............................................................. $3.75



  

9 
Revised 12/03/15 

14. Minimum permit fee including repair work not elsewhere classified ..................... $125.00 
15. Satellite Antenna grounding ...................................................................................... $62.50 
 
16. Demolitions; removal of electrical circuits, per floor ............................................... $43.75 
17. Swimming pools, spas and hot tubs: 

A. Residential ............................................................................................................. $125.00 
B. Commercial ........................................................................................................... $125.00 
C. Residential pool & spa combination ..................................................................... $125.00 
 

PLUMBING PERMIT FEES: 
 
1. Residential/commercial (new construction, additions, alterations).  

Minimum fee. ............................................................................................................. $125.00 
A. Rough and set at eight dollars and seventy five cents ($8.75) rough-in, 

eight dollars and seventy five cents ($8.75) set on each fixture listed 
below if part of the same permit application.  Including, but not limited 
to, bath tub, bidet, dishwasher, disposal, drinking fountain, floor drain, 
lavatory, laundry tray, clothes washer, shower, sink, urinal, water closet 
indirect wastes, icemaker, and water heater. 

B. Items not covered under minimum fee schedule shall be priced at a 
minimum per-unit or fixture rate of seventeen dollars and fifty cents 
($17.50) eight dollars and seventy five cents ($8.75) rough-in, eight 
dollars and seventy five cents ($8.75) set. 

2. Water treatment plants, sewage treatment plants and lift stations. 
A. First $1,000.00 value or fractional part thereof ................................................... $93.75 
B. Each additional $1,000.00 value or fractional part thereof ................................. $31.25 

3. Natural gas and liquefied petroleum rough and set at eight dollars and seventy five 
cents ($8.75) rough-in, eight dollars and seventy five cents ($8.75) set on each 
fixture if parts of the same permit application.  (See minimum fee above.) 

4. Grease trap ................................................................................................................. $43.75 
5. Interceptor .................................................................................................................. $43.75 
6. Wells ............................................................................................................................ $43.75 
7. Sewer connection ....................................................................................................... $43.75 
8. Water service .............................................................................................................. $43.75 
9. Sewer capping ............................................................................................................. $43.75 
10. Septic tank ................................................................................................................... $62.50 
11. Soakage pit .................................................................................................................. $43.75 
12. Catch basin .................................................................................................................. $31.25 
13. Interceptor-grease-oil ................................................................................................. $43.75 
14. Solar water heaters, installation or repair .................................................................. $43.75 
15. Heat recovery systems ................................................................................................ $43.75 
16. Pool piping .................................................................................................................. $43.75 
17. Drain field .................................................................................................................... $43.75 
18. Pump and abandon septic tank .................................................................................. $43.75 
19. Roof drains & area drains ........................................................................................... $43.75 
20. Lawn Sprinkler System ................................................................................................ $43.75 
21. Backflow prevention device: 

A. Up to 2" (inches) ................................................................................................... $43.75 



 
 

10 
Revised 12/03/15 

B. Over 2" (inches) .................................................................................................... $62.50 
22. Fire Sprinklers: 

A. Each Siamese......................................................................................................... $31.25 
B. Each Post Indicator Valve ...................................................................................... $31.25 
C. Each Roof Manifold ............................................................................................... $31.25 
D. Each Fire Pump ..................................................................................................... $43.75 
E. Each Sprinkler Head .............................................................................................. $0.94 
F. Connection to municipal water supply ................................................................. $31.25 

 
MECHANICAL PERMIT FEES: 
 
The building department shall charge and collect for mechanical permits at the following rate: 
1. Air conditioning and refrigeration: 

• Minimum fee ......................................................................................................... $125.00 
• Per ton or fractional part of ton ........................................................................... $15.00 

2. Condensate drains: 
• First ....................................................................................................................... $15.00 
• Each additional ...................................................................................................... $6.25 

3. Heating units: 
A. First 5 units, each unit ........................................................................................... $31.25 
B. Each unit thereafter .............................................................................................. $18.75 
C. Each and every unit capable of heating; furnaces and heating equipment, including 

commercial dryers, ovens, and other fired objects not elsewhere classified. Includes all 
component parts of the system except fuel and electric lines. 
• For the first 200,000 BTU or fractional part ................................................... $43.75 
• For each additional 100,000 BTU or fractional part ....................................... $25.00 
• Ductwork: 

o first $1,000.00 value ........................................................................... $43.75 
o each additional $1,000.00 value or  fractional part thereof .............. $15.00 

4. All spray booths: 
A. For the first 300 sq. feet or fractional part thereof .............................................. $250.00 
B. Each additional 100 sq. feet or fractional part thereof ........................................ $125.00 

5. Boilers and pressure vessels: 
A. Rated capacity first 200,000 BTU .......................................................................... $125.00 
B. Each additional 100,000 BTU's.............................................................................. $25.00 

(Tons = BTU’s divided by 12,000) 
C. Steam boilers, each ............................................................................................... $125.00 
D. Hot water boilers (same), each ............................................................................. $125.00 
E. Miniature boilers (same), each ............................................................................. $62.50 
F. Steam driven prime movers, each ........................................................................ $62.50 
G. Steam actuated machinery, each ......................................................................... $18.75 
H. Unfired pressure vessels; operating at pressures in excess of 60 psi and having a volume 

of more than 5 cu. ft. ............................................................................................ $50.00 
a. Fee for periodic inspections of steam boiler (semi-annual, internal and external): 

• Semiannual internal inspection ................................................................ $37.50 
• Semiannual external inspection ............................................................... $62.50 
• Hot water boilers, annual ......................................................................... $62.50 
• Unfired pressure vessel, annual................................................................ $62.50 



 
 

11 
Revised 12/03/15 

• Miniature boilers, semiannual, each inspection ....................................... $43.75 
I. Certificate of inspection, (conducted by an independent agency) ...................... $62.50 
J. Processing by mechanical inspector ..................................................................... $130.0 

6. Internal combustion engines: 
• Up to 50 KVA ................................................................................................... $125.00 
• Each additional 5 KVA or fractional part thereof ............................................ $25.00 

7. Pressure piping: 
• First $1,000.00 ................................................................................................ $62.50 
• Each additional $1,000 or fractional part thereof .......................................... $31.25 

8. Cooling tower: 
• Up to 10 tons................................................................................................... $62.50 
• Each additional 10 tons or fractional part thereof ......................................... $18.75 

9. Ventilation and ventilation systems: 
• Up to $1,000.00 in value ................................................................................. $43.75 
• Each additional 10 tons or fractional part thereof ......................................... $18.75 

10. Fireplace (each) .......................................................................................................... $62.50 
11. Bath fans, vented: 

• First ................................................................................................................. $18.75 
• Each additional ................................................................................................ $12.50 

12. Vented kitchen hoods, residential ............................................................................. $31.25 
13. Storage tanks for flammable liquids (gas), per tank ................................................. $50.00 
14. Piping for flammable liquids: 

• First $1,000.00 in value ................................................................................... $62.50 
• Each additional $1,000.00 or fractional part thereof ..................................... $31.25 

15. Chemical fire suppression system (each) .................................................................. $62.50 
16. Commercial hoods and fans (each) ........................................................................... $93.75 
17. Exhaust fans/power vents (each) .............................................................................. $43.75 
18. Unfired pressure vessels (each) ................................................................................. $43.75 
19. Yearly smoke evacuation test .................................................................................... $250.00 
 
PORTABLE STORAGE UNITS FEE: 
 
1. Portable Storage Units (PSU) ..................................................................................... $50.00 
2. PSU Renewal ............................................................................................................... $25.00 
3. Permit fee for PSU shall be waived by the Building Official when a current Building 

Permit has been obtained on for the same property address. 
 
PLANNING AND ZONING FEES: 

 
1. Zoning and Planning Board Application Fees (Sec. 150-103) 

A. Residential ............................................................................................................. $2,000.00 
B. Commercial ........................................................................................................... $2,500.00 

*Plus costs of recovery 
2. Petition for Zoning Change (Sec. 150-104) 

A. Residential ............................................................................................................. $3,000.00 
B. Commercial ........................................................................................................... $6,000.00 

*Plus actual accosts of mailing and publication 
3. Applications for Variances (Sec. 150-112) 



 
 

12 
Revised 12/03/15 

A. Minimum Fee (Residential) ................................................................................... $350.00 
B. Minimum Fee (Commercial) ................................................................................. $350.00 
C. Building Projects under $10,000 ........................................................................... $350.00 
D. Building Projects over $10,000 in value (Residential) .......................................... $350.00 
E. Building Projects over $10,000 in value (Commercial) ......................................... $1,000.00 
F. Commercial Vehicle Variance ............................................................................... $50.00 

4. Appeals from Denials of Variance Applications (Sec. 150-111) 
A. Residential ............................................................................................................. $100.00 
B. Commercial ........................................................................................................... $600.00 

5. Zoning-Permit Review Fee 
A. Residential ............................................................................................................. $100.00 
B. Commercial ........................................................................................................... $200.00 

*Plus 50% of fee for rework after second disapproval 
 
Note-These fees shall only be applied at the discretion of the Planning and Zoning Director, 
depending on the time spent to review the permit/plans. 

 
6. Zoning Code Amendments 

A. Residential ............................................................................................................. $4,250.00 
B. Commercial ........................................................................................................... $4,250.00 

7. Comp Plan Amendments ............................................................................................ $5,000.00 
*Plus cost recovery including consultants 
8. Modification or Release of Covenant ......................................................................... $500.00 
9. Street or Alley Vacation Application ........................................................................... $4,000.00 
10. Zoning Verification (Liquor License) 

A. 2APS ...................................................................................................................... $160.00* 
B. 2COP ...................................................................................................................... $200.00* 
C. 4COP ...................................................................................................................... $450.00* 

*Plus $250.00 for preparation of covenant if applicable (Optional) 
11. Zoning Verification-Other 

A. Residential ............................................................................................................. $150.00 
B. Commercial ........................................................................................................... $200.00 

12. FIRM Rate Map Determination 
A. Current .................................................................................................................. $50.00 
B. Historic .................................................................................................................. $75.00 

13. Tentative Plat .............................................................................................................. $500.00 
14. Final Plat ...................................................................................................................... $1,000.00 
* Plus Cost Recovery Fees 
15. Street/Alley Vacation and Abandonment ................................................................... $500.00 
16. Re-Notification Fee for Board of Adjustment and/or Zoning ..................................... $150.00 
 And Planning Board Hearings (If deferral is requested by Applicant)  

 
TREE RELATED FEES: 
 
1. TREE REMOVAL APPLICATION ............................................................................. $35.00
 



 

1                                                       FEE SCHEDULE 
 

 
 
A> BUILDING PERMIT FEES: 
 
(1)  General maintenance and repairs.  Refer to City Code Section 151.04 (H). 
 
(2)  Upfront processing fee.  When the building permit is received, the applicant shall pay an 
"upfront" processing fee equal to three dollars ($3.00) for each one hundred (100) square feet, or 
fractional part thereof, or three dollars ($3.00) for each one thousand dollars ($1,000.00) of 
estimated valuation, or fractional part thereof.   This processing fee is not refundable but shall be 
credited towards the final building permit fee. 
 

a.  A fee of fifty dollars ($50) shall be charged for window, door, and shutter replacement 
permit. Added to reduce fee from $100.00 to $50.00 for replacement jobs. 

b. No fees shall be charged for a single item submittal of a window, door or shutter permit. 
Added to eliminate fee for single item submittals.  

 

 
a. New residences, and additions to residential property: 

1. Per $1.00 of estimated cost or fractional part….($0.03) (estimated cost shall be 
 established by the Building Official using the “R.S. Means Building Construction Cost 
 Data” manual). 
2. Minimum fee:  $125.00 

 
b. Office buildings, duplexes, hotels, apartments, condominiums, store buildings or any other 
commercial or multiple family zoned properties, tenant improvements, interior alterations, 
parking garages, warehouses with minimum office space, commercial swimming pools: 

1. Per $1.00 of estimated cost or fractional part….($0.04) (estimated cost shall be 
established by the Building Official using the “R.S. Means Building Construction Cost 
Data” manual). 

2. Minimum fee:  $125.00 
 
 
 

(3)  Structural processing fee.  When a building permit application requires review by the 
structural plans processor, a non-refundable fee of one hundred dollars ($100) shall be added 
to the upfront fee on residential permits.  Commercial permits shall be charged one hundred 
and fifty dollars ($150).  Subsequent reviews required shall be charged at the same rates per 
review and shall be added to the total permit fee.  Special reviews or reviews that require extra 
time shall be charged at a per hour rate for the Structural Engineer. 

(4)  General, New Construction or Additions.  The permit fee for general or new construction 
shall be as follows: 

SCHEDULE OF CHARGES FOR BUILDING, 
PLUMBING, ELECTRICAL, MECHANICAL AND 

OTHER RELATED PERMITS AND FEES 
 



 

FEE SCHEDULE 
 

2 

 
c.  Concrete patios, wood decks, driveways, concrete steps, walkways, screen enclosures, parking 
lots, tennis courts and landscaping (residential or business): Removed  to be charged separately. 

1. Minimum fee:  $125.00 
2. ($0.18) per sq. ft. or fractional part thereof. 

 
d. Awnings, canopies, window, shutters, gates, wrought iron grills, doors and garage doors 
(residential or business): 

1. Minimum fee:  $125.00 
2. ($4.38) per each item or fractional part thereof. 

 
 e. Roof and roof repairs, general repairs over $300.00 

(residential or business): 
1. Minimum fee:  $125.00 
2. ($0.13) per sq. ft. or fractional part thereof 

 
 f.  Air conditioning screens, aluminum fences, wood fences (residential or business): 

1. Minimum fee:  $125.00 
2. ($0.81) per LF or fractional part thereof. 

 
 g. Masonry fences, wrought iron fences, retaining walls, railings 
     (residential or business): Removed  to be charged separately. 

1. Minimum fee:  $125.00 
2. ($1.06) per LF or fractional part thereof 

 
 h. Chain link fences (residential or business): 

1. Minimum fee:  $125.00 
2. ($0.38) per LF or fractional part thereof  

  
 i. Signs: 
    Minimum fee:  $125.00 

1. ($2.50) per sq. ft. or fractional part thereof 
2. Contractor Signs:  $25.00  
3. Window signs-$50 (minimum fee not applicable) 

 
 j.  Housing and building moving: 

1. Per building or structure:    $125.00 
2. For each 100 sq. ft. or fractional part thereof: ($12.50) 

 
 k.  Demolition (residential or business): 

1. Minimum fee:  $125.00 
2. ($0.06) per sq. ft. or fractional part thereof 

 



FEE SCHEDULE 3 

l. Utility sheds
1. Per building or structure:   $125.00

m. Wood decks, screen enclosures and aluminum roofs.
1. Minimum fee: $150.00
2. ($0.75) per ln. ft. or fractional part thereof. Modified fee from $0.18 to $0.75 per linear 

foot to cover cost of additional required inspections.

n. Masonry walls and retaining walls.
1. Minimum fee: $150.00
2. ($1.75) per ln. ft. or fractional part thereof. Modified fee from $1.06 to $1.75 per linear 

foot to cover cost of additional required inspections.

Alteration or repair (single family residential zones): 
1. Minimum fee:  $125.00
2. Per $1000.00 of value or fractional part thereof: ($30.00)

Alteration or repair (commercial or multiple family zones): 
1. Minimum fee:  $125.00
2. Per $1000.00 of value or fractional part thereof: ($40.00)

Minimum Permit. A Minimum Permit shall be allowed in cases where the value of the job is 
 below $500 and the Permit requires only one review and one inspection.  Such Permit shall 
 have a fee of fifty dollars ($50.00). Minimum Permits must have the prior approval of either 
 the Building Official, the Director of Building and Code Compliance, or his/her designee. 

(5)  Valuation.  The method of determining minimum valuation on which permits are based as 
covered above shall be established by the Building Official in conjunction with the Dade County 
Office of Code Compliance (Chapter 8, Section 8-12). Modified to show chapter & section. 

(6)  Miscellaneous fees.  The City shall charge and collect the following fees for re-inspection, 
double permits, lost plans, revised plans, and second re-inspection fees, to wit: 

a. Re-inspection fees.  Refer to Code Section 151.06(B)(1).
b. Double fees.  Refer to City Code Section 151.06(A). Modified to include the following

statement:  When work for which a permit is required is commenced prior to the obtaining of a 
permit, the permit applicant shall be required to pay ($100.00) plus a double permit fee. The 
payment of the required fee shall not relieve them from being subject to any of the penalties 
therein. The double fee requirements shall be applicable to all divisions of the Building 
Department as noted herein.  

c. Lost plan fee.  When plans for new buildings and additions are lost by the owner or the
contractor, a recertification   will be required to review, stamp, and approve a new set of plans as a 
field copy. The fee shall be thirty (30) percent of the original building permit fee up to a maximum 
of ($500.00). The lost plan fee shall never be lower than ($100.00). 



 

FEE SCHEDULE 
 

4 

  d. Revisions to existing plans.  A fee for reviewing plans (after approval of initial plans) shall 
be ($25.00) ($50.00) per sheet and/or per trade, with a minimum fee of twenty five dollars 
($25.00). Fee raised to cover the expense of review and process for each trade. 
 
 e. Extension of expired permits.  A fee of one hundred twenty five dollars ($125.00) 
($50.00) shall be paid by the permit holder who submits a written request to the Building Official 
for a permit extension as authorized under Section 304.3(b) of the South Florida Building Code.  
Modified to reduce fee from $125.00 to $50.00 and reference to the South Florida Building Code. 
 
 f. Shop drawing review.  A fee of seventeen dollars and fifty cents ($17.50) per sheet shall 
be charged for reviewing shop drawings. 
 
 g. Certificate of occupancy and certificate of completion.  One hundred twenty five dollars 
($125.00) each. 
 
 h. Temporary certificate of occupancy and temporary certificate of completion.  Sixty-five 
dollars ($65.00) each.  Failure to renew temporary certificate of occupancy or temporary certificate 
of completion ($125.00).  
 
 i.  Permit card replacement shall carry a fee of thirty dollars ($30.00). 
 
 j.  Change of contractor.  The fee for a change of contractor shall be twenty five (25%) 
percent of the original base permit fee when the job is up to fifty percent complete as 
determined by the City Building Official.  The fee for a change of contractor shall be twenty (20%) 
percent of the original base permit fee when the job is between fifty one and seventy five 
percent complete as determined by the City Building Official.  The fee for a change of contractor 
shall be ten (10%) percent of the original base permit fee when the job is between seventy six 
and one hundred percent complete as determined by the City Building Official.  Notwithstanding 
the foregoing fee, other miscellaneous fees set forth in this Schedule of Charges may also be 
applicable in the sole and exclusive discretion of the City Building Official. 
 
 k. Forty year certification fee.  For every application for forty year certification under 
section 104.9, Florida Building Code, there shall be paid to the City, for the processing of each 
application, a fee of two hundred fifty dollars ($250.00). For every application for subsequent 
recertification at ten year intervals thereafter, there shall be paid to the City, for the processing of 
each application, a fee of one hundred twenty five dollars ($125.00). 
 
            l. Courtesy inspection fee.  When a homeowner requests that a courtesy inspection be 
performed by a code enforcement officer in order to establish if any City Code violations exist, and 
a written report is prepared, a fee of one hundred twenty five dollars ($125.00) shall be paid to the 
City. A fee of ($50.00) shall be assessed for a verification inspection required to close-out and/or 



 

FEE SCHEDULE 
 

5 

cancel an expired permit. Added to include a lower fee for a verification inspection only (no 
report required). 
 
           m. Change of use and occupational license inspection.  Whenever a new occupational 
license or new occupancy is applied for, a fee of one hundred twenty five dollars ($125.00) shall be 
paid to the City for inspection of the premises prior to the issuance of said license. This fee is non 
refundable and does not apply towards the licensing fee. 
  
 n. A fee of twenty-five dollars ($25.00) shall be charged for the preparation and submission 
of any letters requested by any citizen or third party regarding any building information on any 
property in the city.  
 
             o. A fee of fifty cents (.50) per $1,000 job cost, or fractional value of work to be done as has 
been mandated by Dade County Code Compliance Office under County ordinance 91-74.  This code 
compliance fee shall be in addition to any other fees and costs that may be payable as a condition 
of obtaining a permit, and shall be non-refundable. 
 
             p. A fee of one cent (.01) per square foot shall be paid to the City for the purpose of Radon 
Surcharge as mandated by the State of Florida Department of Business Regulation and the 
Department of Health and Rehabilitation Services under Florida Administrative Code Section 
468.631 and Section 10D-91.1314, respectively, in addition to any other fees and costs that may be 
payable as a condition of obtaining a permit, and shall be non-refundable. 
 
 q. Construction completion bond in the amount of $250.00 shall be assessed on every 
permit which is valued in excess of $2500.00.  This bond will be refunded upon the approval of the 
final inspection or upon the issuance of a certificate of completion or certificate of occupancy. 
 
 r. Special Project Fees.  The Building Official or designee has the authority to invoice for 
reimbursement of actual costs on projects requiring services not provided for in the current fee 
schedule.  The invoice will be based on estimated time needed for the project times the current 
hourly rate of the Building Official or his designee. 
 
 s. Conditional Re-Occupancy Agreement-$500 
 
 t. Conditional Code Compliance Agreement-$500 
 
 u. Unsafe Structures Board Filing-$500 plus costs (as billed by the Unsafe Structures Board) 
 

v. Renewal of expired permit. A minimum fee of One Hundred and Twenty-five dollars 
($125.00) shall be applied for those permits that only require a final inspection. When a permit has 
become null and void pursuant to the Florida Building Code, a credit of fifty percent (50%) of the 
permit fee shall be applied to any re-application (Renewal) fee for a permit covering the same 
project and involving the same plans, provided that the complete re-application is made within six 
(6) months of the expiration date of the original permit, and provided that no refund had been 



 

FEE SCHEDULE 
 

6 

made as provided in this Section. Added to include renewal of expired permits. 
 
w. Scanning Fee. A fee for scanning and digitizing of ($1.00) charged per sheets 11” x 17” or 

smaller and ($3.00) per sheets 18” x 24” or larger. Added to recaptured cost of scanning cost. 
 
x. Technology Fee. A technology fee of 10% of the total Building permit fee shall be 

assessed to each permit in order to enhance the City’s ability to provide state-of-the-art 
technology to its Building Department customers. Added to include a technology fee in order to 
purchase and maintain new software for the Building Department. 

 
y. After Hours Inspection Fee. Inspections scheduled before/after working hours, 

weekends and/or holidays shall be paid in advanced. Residential: ($150.00 per inspection) & 
Commercial: ($250.00 per inspection). Added to cover cost of overtime for inspectors and 
facilitate the construction process of projects with time restrictions and/or limitations.  
 
(7) Refunds. The refunding of any permit fees shall be as follows: 
 
  a. There shall be no permit fees refunded for completed permitted work. 
  b. The Building Director may recommend the refund of 80% of all refundable permit 
  fees so long as no work has commenced within 90 days of permitting and no permits 
  have been voided.  However, the fee collected for the examination of plans and  
  specifications shall not be refundable. 

c. If at any time a permit is canceled for any reason, at such time as a new permit is 
requested, a complete processing of plans and permit fee shall be required to  
include reviews by all required trades and applicable boards. 

 
B> ELECTRICAL PERMIT FEES: 
 
(1)  Minimum fee.                          $125.00 
     
 a.  Temporary service for testing purposes, construction     62.50       
     (plus fees listed below for 101 amps & over)              
 b.  Service repair and/or meter change (adding 3rd phase)    50.00          
 c.  Temporary for testing, for a period of 30 days      50.00 
 d.  Renewal, for additional 30 days        50.00 
 e.  Signs (each)          50.00 
 
(2)  Services.  In addition to the foregoing the following fees  shall be charged for each service and 
each feeder (feed rail): 

a.  100 amps and under      37.50 
b.  101 amps thru 200 amps      43.75 
c.  201 amps thru 400 amps       50.00 
d.  401 amps thru 600 amps       62.50 
e.  601 amps thru 800 amps       68.75 



 

FEE SCHEDULE 
 

7 

f.  For each 100 amps over 800 amps          6.25 
 
(3)  Switchboards.  Fees are the same as the fees under “services” computed on amps, as set forth 
in           (2) above. 
 
(4)  Rough wiring outlets. (light, receptacle, switch, sign and also telephone and other low voltage 
outlets): 

a. 1-10 outlets                                          25.00 
b. Each additional outlet                                    2.50 

 
(5)  Low voltage systems.  Items listed below but, not limited to: 
a.Fire alarm or intercom systems, each device.     37.50 
   device. Security alarms do not require a permit!                      
b. Fire alarm and/or fire pump test, per hour             62.50 
(6)  Equipment outlets or permanent connections: 

a. Air conditioners, window and through wall units    12.50 
b. Compactor                  12.50 
c. Deep freezer                      12.50 
d. Dishwasher         12.50 
e. Dryer                  12.50 
f. Fan                 12.50 
g. Garbage disposal                  12.50 
h. Heat recovery         12.50 
i. Oven              12.50 
j. Range/range top            12.50 
k. Refrigerator (domestic)               12.50 
l. Refrigerator (commercial per HP, see motor schedule)      12.50 
m. Space heater          12.50 
n. Time clock            12.50 
o. Washing machine        12.50 
p. Water heater-boiler (electrical)            12.50 

 
(7)  Air conditioners, central, per ton        8.75 
 
(8)  Clear violations inspection, new tenants        62.50 
 
(9)  Motors: 

a. Up to 5 HP             12.50 
b. 5 HP - 10 HP            37.50 
c. Over 10 HP (additional per HP)                   2.50 

 
(10) Generators, transformers, commercial heating equipment and strip heaters: 

a. Up to 5 KW                 12.50 
b. Up to 10 KW           20.00 



 

FEE SCHEDULE 
 

8 

c. 10 KW - 25 KW, each         37.50 
d. Over 25 KW, each             62.50 
e. Transformers for X-rays             22.50 

(11) Welding machine outlets: 
a. Up to 50 amps            25.00 
b. Each additional 50 amps or fraction thereof            12.50 

 
(12) Special purpose outlets, commercial: Popcorn, doughnut, drink machines; coin-

music machines; toasters; coffee urns; espresso machines; deep fryers; telephone 
booths; refrigerator display cases; etc., each                   
 25.00 

 
(13) Temporary work on circuses, carnivals, outdoor events... 

Minimum Fee            187.50 
(14) Fixtures: 

a. Lights: 
1.  1 - 10 sockets           12.50 
2.  1 - 10 fluorescent tubes              12.50 

b. Each additional              1.25 
c. Lighting fixture "heads", each                8.75 
d. Flood lights or light standards, each           12.50 
e. Parking lot lights, mercury vapor or quartz,  charge per light    12.50 
 

(15) Plugmold and strip lighting: 
a. First 10 feet or fractional part thereof         31.25 
b. Each 5 feet or fractional part thereafter      3.75 

 
(16) Minimum permit fee including repair work not elsewhere classified     125.00 
 
(17) Satellite Antenna grounding                                62.50 
 
(18) Demolitions; removal of electrical circuits, per floor    43.75 
 
(19) Swimming pools, spas and hot tubs: 

a. Residential            125.00 
b. Commercial         125.00 
c. Residential pool & spa combination         125.00 

 
 
C>  PLUMBING PERMIT FEES 
 
(1) Residential/commercial (new construction, additions, alterations).  

Minimum fee.                                 125.00 
a. Rough and set at eight dollars and seventy five cents ($8.75) rough-



 

FEE SCHEDULE 
 

9 

in, eight dollars and seventy five cents ($8.75) set on each fixture 
listed below if part of the same permit application.  Including, but 
not limited to, bath tub, bidet, dishwasher, disposal, drinking 
fountain, floor drain, lavatory, laundry tray, clothes washer, shower, 
sink, urinal, water closet indirect wastes, icemaker, and water 
heater. 

b. Items not covered under minimum fee schedule shall be priced at a 
minimum per-unit or fixture rate of seventeen dollars and fifty cents 
($17.50) eight dollars and seventy five cents ($8.75) rough-in, eight 
dollars and seventy five cents ($8.75) set. 

 
(2)  Water treatment plants, sewage treatment plants and lift stations. 

a. First $1,000.00 value or fractional part thereof      93.75 
b. Each additional $1,000.00 value or fractional part thereof    31.25 

  
 (3) Natural gas and liquefied petroleum rough and set at eight dollars and seventy five cents 

($8.75) rough-in, eight dollars and seventy five cents ($8.75) set on each fixture if part of the same 
permit application.  (See minimum fee above.) 

 (4)  Grease trap             43.75 
 (5)  Interceptor            43.75 
 (6)  Wells             43.75 
 (7)  Sewer connection            43.75 
 (8)  Water service           43.75 
 (9)  Sewer capping            43.75 
 (10) Septic tank         62.50 
 (11) Soakage pit          43.75 
 (12) Catch basin         31.25 
 (13) Interceptor-grease-oil            43.75 
 (14) Solar water heaters, installation or repair         43.75 
 (15) Heat recovery systems            43.75 
 (16) Pool piping         43.75 
 (17) Drain field         43.75 
 (18) Pump and abandon septic tank        43.75 
 (19) Roof drains & area drains         43.75 
 (20) Lawn Sprinkler System            43.75 
 (21) Backflow prevention device 

 Up to 2" (inches)          43.75 
 Over 2" (inches)           62.50 

 (22) Fire Sprinklers 
 Each Siamese        31.25 
 Each Post Indicator Valve          31.25 



 

FEE SCHEDULE 
 

10 

 Each Roof Manifold        31.25 
 Each Fire Pump       43.75 
 Each Sprinkler Head              0.94 
 Connection to municipal water supply        31.25 

 
D>  MECHANICAL PERMIT FEES: 
 
The building department shall charge and collect for mechanical permits at the following rate: 
(1)  Air conditioning and refrigeration: 

a. Minimum fee         125.00 
b. per ton or fractional part of ton           15.00 

 
(2)  Condensate drains: 

a. First           15.00 
b. Each additional           6.25 
 

(3)  Heating units: 
a. First 5 units, each unit            31.25 
b. Each unit thereafter        18.75 
c. Each and every unit capable of heating; furnaces and heating 
equipment, including commercial dryers, ovens, other fired objects 
not elsewhere classified.  Includes all component parts of the system 
except fuel and electric lines. 

1.  For the first 200,000 BTU or fractional part    43.75 
2.  For each additional 100,000 BTU or fractional part   25.00 
3.  Ductwork: 

a)  first $1,000.00 value         43.75 
b)  each additional $1,000.00 value or  fractional 
part thereof        15.00 

 
(4)  All spray booths: 

a.  For the first 300 sq. feet or fractional part thereof    250.00 
b.  each additional 100 sq. feet or fractional part thereof    125.00 
 

(5)  Boilers and pressure vessels: 
a.  Rated capacity first 200,000 BTU          125.00 
b.  Each additional 100,000 BTU's           25.00 
 (Tons = BTU’s divided by 12,000) 
c. Steam boilers, each            125.00 
d. Hot water boilers (same), each          125.00 
e. Miniature boilers (same), each             62.50 
f. Steam driven prime movers, each             62.50 
g. Steam actuated machinery, each            18.75 
h. Unfired pressure vessels; operating at pressures in excess 



 

FEE SCHEDULE 
 

11 

of 60 psi and having  a volume of more than 5 cu. ft.     50.00 
I.  Fee for periodic inspections of steam boiler 
    (semi-annual, internal and external): 

1.  Semiannual internal inspection           37.50 
2.  Semiannual external inspection           62.50 
3.  Hot water boilers, annual            62.50 
4.  Unfired pressure vessel, annual           62.50 
5.  Miniature boilers, semiannual, each inspection      43.75 

j. Certificate of inspection, (conducted by an independent agency)     62.50 
k. Processing by mechanical inspector      130.00 

 
(6)  Internal combustion engines: 

a. Up to 50 KVA          125.00 
b. Each additional 5 KVA or fractional part thereof          25.00 

 
(7)  Pressure piping: 

a. First $1,000.00             62.50 
b. Each additional $1,000 or fractional part thereof         31.25 

 
 
(8)  Cooling tower: 

a. Up to 10 tons            62.50 
b. Each additional 10 tons or fractional part thereof       18.75 

(9)  Ventilation and ventilation systems: 
a. Up to $1,000.00 in value            43.75 
b. Each additional 10 tons or fractional part thereof    18.75 
 

(10) Fireplace (each)              62.50 
 
 
 
(11) Bath fans, vented: 

a. First           18.75 
b. Each additional         12.50 

 
(12) Vented kitchen hoods, residential           31.25 
 
(13) Storage tanks for flammable liquids (gas), per tank        50.00 
 
(14) Piping for flammable liquids: 

a. First $1,000.00 in value           62.50 
b. Each additional $1,000.00 or fractional part thereof    31.25 
 

(15) Chemical fire suppression system (each)                    62.50 



 

FEE SCHEDULE 
 

12 

 
(16) Commercial hoods and fans (each)                           93.75 
 
(17) Exhaust fans/power vents (each)                             43.75 
 
(18) Unfired pressure vessels (each)                             43.75 
 
(19) Yearly smoke evacuation test                              250.00 
 
 
E>   PORTABLE STORAGE UNITS 
 
(1) Portable Storage Units (PSU)       125.00 ($50.00) 
 PSU Renewal         125.00 ($25.00) 

Permit fee for PSU shall be waived by the Building Official when a current Building Permit has been 
obtained on for the same property address. 
Added to eliminate the additional fee of PSU permit and assist residence with construction costs. 

 
 
F> PLANNING AND ZONING FEES 

 
(1) Zoning and Planning Board Application Fees  
           (Sec. 150-103)   Residential         2,000.00* 
     Commercial     2,500.00* 

*Plus costs of recovery 
 
(2) Petition for Zoning Change (Sec. 150-104) ...    
     Residential      3,000.00* 
     Commercial      6,000.00* 
 *Plus actual accosts of mailing and publication 
 (3) Applications for Variances (Sec. 150-112) 
 

Minimum Fee (Residential)...            350.00 
Minimum Fee (Commercial)...            350.00 
Building Projects under $10,000...     350.00 
Building Projects over $10,000 
 in value (Residential)   ...                   350.00 
Building Projects over $10,000 
 in value (Commercial) ...                 1,000.00 
Commercial Vehicle Variance       50.00 

 
(4) Appeals from Denials of Variance Applications 

 
(Sec. 150-111)  .... Residential        100.00 



 

FEE SCHEDULE 
 

13 

     .... Commercial     600.00 
 

(5) Zoning-Permit Review Fee Residential     100.00* 
    Commercial     200.00* 
*Plus 50% of fee for rework after second disapproval 
Note-These fees shall only be applied at the discretion  
of the Planning and Zoning Director, depending on  
the time spent to review the permit/plans. 
 

(6) Zoning Code Amendments  Residential     4,250.00 
    Commercial     4,250.00 

(7) Comp Plan Amendments       5,000.00* 
*Plus cost recovery including consultants 

(8) Modification or Release of Covenant      500.00 
(9) Street or Alley Vacation Application      4,000.00 
(10) Zoning Verification (Liquor License) 

    2APS      160.00* 
    2COP      200.00* 
    4COP      450.00* 
*Plus $250.00 for preparation of covenant if applicable (Optional) 

 
(11) Zoning Verification-Other  Residential    150.00 
      Commercial    200.00 
(12) FIRM Rate Map Determination Current    50.00 

     Historic    75.00 
 (13) Tentative Plat        500.00 
 
 (14) Final Plat        1,000.00* 
  * Plus Cost Recovery Fees 
 
 (15) Street/Alley Vacation and Abandonment    500.00 
 
 (16) Re-Notification Fee for Board of Adjustment and/or Zoning 150.00 
  And Planning Board Hearings (If deferral is requested by 
  Applicant)  
 
G> TREE RELATED FEES 
 

(1) TREE REMOVAL APPLICATION     $35.00 
 



FEE SCHEDULE 14 

H> SERVICES NOT SPECIFIED IN FEE SCHEDULE 

The Building Department reserves the right to establish an appropriate fee for any service or 
item not otherwise provided for in this Schedule of Fees in accordance with the normal and customary 
charges and fees established by other jurisdictions for such services and items, but, however, subject to 
final determination by the City Building Official.  All permits with a Market Value for the job in excess of 
$2,000 shall be charged at the percentage rate for New Construction or Alterations/Repairs and not on 
the line item basis. 























































































































































































































































































2015 CITY WIDE SWEEP FOR 
MATERIAL ON SWALES AND 

SIDEWALKS 
CODE SEC. 96-07 

by taverasl 

ATTACHMENT 2


























































































































































	Agenda
	3A Miami Springs Little League Lightning 12U Travel Softball Team
	3B December YOM - 140 Apache Street
	5A CCRM - 11-9-2015
	7A Ordinance - Roof Materials, Requirements, and Re-Roofs
	8A City Attorneys Invoice
	8B Scanning of Permits and Plans for Building Dept.
	8C December Classic Car Show Invoice
	8D River Cities Festival Sponsorship
	9A Appointments to Advisory Boards
	9C Initiation of Strategic Plan Review
	10A Curtiss Mansion LAP Agreement
	10B Resolution - Fifth Budget Amendment
	10C Resolution - Amending Current Schedule of Charges for Buidling, Plumbing, Electrical, Mechanical, and Other related Permit Charges or Fees
	10D Prince Field Playground Project
	10E Request by Kathie and Martin Marquez for scheduling of their Board of Appeals Hearing
	10F Selection of Artist via Arts in Public Places process for our Aquatic Facility
	10G Canal Agreement
	10H Alberni, Caballero & Fierman, LLC - External Auditing Services
	10I Mutual Aid Agreement to participate in the South Florida Money Laundering Strike Force
	10J Code Compliance Enforcement of Clutter in/on City Swales
	11A FY14-15 Fourth Quarter Budget Status Update (Unaudited)



